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We have highlighted the mission of “invest for a better
life”, integrated the success of the culture of our
management team into current operations, and adhered
to the “customer-first, all wins, harmony-oriented,
environmental friendly, result driven” philosophy, thus
promoting sustainable corporate development. This is
proved that we proactively responded to stakeholders’
concerns and, in particular, persisted with repaying
investors’ trust with increasing returns and looking for
good opportunities. We will expand our business to other
sectors that would have good opportunities. We ensure a
steady supply of quality products and considerate services
to our customers, kept our promise to employees and
paid heed to their concerns, created a home-alike working
environment and a broad development platform, and
proactively engaged in social welfare in return for the
support and understanding of all walks of life.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NRIEF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Wang Jing (Chairman)

Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Zhao Shuang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Wang Ping

Song Wenke

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (resigned on 30 April 2019)
Zeng Guanwei (appointed on 30 April 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lam Wai Kei

AUDITOR
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Wang Ping (Chairman)

Song Wenke

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (resigned on 30 April 2019)
Zeng Guanwei (appointed on 30 April 2019)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Song Wenke (Chairman)

Wang Ping

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (resigned on 30 April 2019)
Zeng Guanwei (appointed on 30 April 2019)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Wang Jing (Chairman)

Song Wenke

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (resigned on 30 April 2019)
Zeng Guanwei (appointed on 30 April 2019)

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNFEH

SOLICITOR
Loeb & Loeb LLP

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG AND CONTACT INFORMATION

Suites 2602-2603, 26/F., Tower 1, The Harbourfront,
18 Tak Fung Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2286 0728

Fax: (852) 2286 0727

Website: www.00485.hk

Email: office@00485.hk
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRBES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Sinostar Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and
all of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, the “Group”),
| am pleased to present the Group’s annual report for the year
ended 31 March 2019 to the shareholders of the Company.

It has been the Group's business strategy to diversify its business
models into different business sectors and to strengthen
and expand its revenue streams. The Group is committed
to generating sustainable returns to its shareholders and
enhance the shareholders’ value. The management of the
Group formulates various business strategies to cope with the
development of the Group. Also, we monitor the markets closely
and take immediate and appropriate actions when needed.

During the financial year of 2019, the Group encountered a
series of challenges, including the trade war and new tariffs
between the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and the
United States of America (the “USA"), the growth of the overall
global economy continued with a weakened momentum, and the
foreign currency fluctuations, especially the volatility in Renminbi
exchange rate made the operating environment difficult and
tough. Furthermore, the negative effect from the bankruptcy of
Toys“R"”Us, Inc. further deteriorated the sales performance of
the electronic products of the Group that drove the Group to
re-direct its business into other sectors. Despite the above, the
Group revisited its business models, adjusted its development
strategies and managed to improve its operating performance
for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERES

In view that the PRC property market presented a stable
development pace in the past years, the Group has redirected
its resources to the properties development sector since 2018.
In 2018, the gross floor area and the sales value of commodity
housing sales in the PRC reached approximately 1.72 billion
sg.m. and approximately RMB15 trillion, respectively. The central
government emphasized that a differentiated approach on
property market regulation in different cities should be upheld
firmly to promote balanced supply and demand in order to
maintain a healthy property market. The Group is optimistic
towards the property market in the PRC in the coming years and
has decided to further expand its business scale in the properties
development business.

Looking forward, it is believed that the operating environment
will remain difficult and the overall market conditions will be
full of uncertainties. The Group will maintain the same prudent
approach it has pursued on our business over the past years.
We will continue to focus on our core business as well as seize
business opportunities when they emerge so as to generate
better results to the shareholders of the Company.

Lastly, | would like to thank my fellow Directors, senior
management and all our employees for their contribution and
support during the year. | would also like to thank all our
shareholders, suppliers, business partners and customers, whose
supports have contributed to our success in the past year.

By the order of the Board
Wang Jing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB mEA DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

In view of the perplexing changes in the global political and
economic environment, the Group has adjusted its operations
by expanding its business scope into properties development
business. The Group’s willingness to innovate and diversify its
business models and revenue streams led to improved operating
performance of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2019.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$559,286,000, representing an
increase of 8% as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$518,038,000 for the corresponding period in 2018. The
deteriorated business performance of the electronic products
business resulted from the drastic changes and uncertainties
in the global economic environment was compensated by the
revenue generated from the properties development business
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Other gain at the amount of approximately HK$2,678,000 was
recorded for the year ended 31 March 2019 which was mainly
derived from the reversal of the allowance for doubtful debts
from the electronic products business, as compared to other loss
at the amount of approximately HK$18,875,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2018 which was due to the bad debts written
off in relation to the bankruptcy of Toys“R”Us, Inc., being one
of the major clients of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2018.

In addition, finance costs of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$6,905,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018
to approximately HK$4,736,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019 which was mainly due to the release of finance costs from
subsidiaries that were disposed of during the year ended 31
March 2018.

As a result, the Group recorded a loss at the amount of
approximately HK$11,724,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019, representing a decrease of 56% as compared to the loss
of approximately HK$26,721,000 for the year ended 31 March
2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

Design and Sale of Electronic Products

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated
29 September 2017 and the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2018, Toys“R”Us, Inc., being
one of the top five customers of the Group which accounted
for approximately 13% of the sales of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018, filed a voluntary petition for relief
under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of Virginia in Richmond
which subsequently turned into liquidation in April 2018. During
the year ended 31 March 2019, the electronic products business
experienced sales slowdown and revenue generated from this
segment decreased from approximately HK$512,115,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately HK$394,365,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019. As a result, the Group
recorded a segment loss at the amount of approximately
HK$10,098,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019, as compared
to a segment loss at the amount of approximately HK$1,729,000
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Furthermore, the trade war and new tariffs between the PRC and
USA and the foreign currency fluctuations made the business
environment for trading business tougher and more difficult.
As such, the management of the Group has been revisiting its
business model on the trading business and positioning itself
for further growth through expanding and diversifying its core
business and adding new distribution channels in the USA
and abroad, so as to minimize the negative impact from the
bankruptcy and liquidation of Toys”R"”Us, Inc..
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

Operation and Management of Hydroelectric Power
Stations

Starting from the financial year of 2016, the Group reallocated
its resources into the development of renewable energy business.
During the financial years of 2017 and 2018, the Group acquired
two companies in the PRC which engaged in the operation and
management of hydroelectric power stations that are connected
to the national power grid in the northern China. The revenue
and profit generated from the hydroelectric power business
increased over the years. The revenue for the year ended 31
March 2019 was approximately HK$6,216,000,
increase of 20% as compared to the amount of approximately
HK$5,185,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018, while the
segment profit increased from approximately HK$630,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately HK$1,855,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

representing an

The national electricity consumption in the PRC in 2018
increased by 8.5% as compared with the previous year, and
reached a record high over the past seven years. Furthermore,
the city design and the formulation of regulations in the PRC
in respect of environmental protection and renewable energy
business are constantly improving and there is an increasing
demand for green and renewable energy over the years. The
Group is confident that the investments in renewable energy
business can strengthen the revenue stream of the Group in the

long run.

Properties Investment

Revenue from properties investment was mainly derived from the
leasing of several parcels of land in the PRC. For the year ended
31 March 2019, the revenue was approximately HK$1,276,000,
representing an increase of 73% as compared to approximately
HK$738,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018. The segment
loss also decreased from approximately HK$2,471,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately HK$1,185,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

Properties Development

Leveraging on the experience and connection of the
management, the Group started to engage in properties
development business since the financial year of 2018. During
the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group acquired the land
use right of a parcel of land located at Xiguan Village, Huanren
County, Benxi, Liaoning Province, the PRC with a floor area of
46,242.6 sq.m. and a construction area of 80,462 sq.m. for the
construction of commercial and residential properties (the “Xiguan
Project”). The Xiguan Project, featuring 19 buildings that created
775 living and 30 commercial units, is located at the key school
district which is adjacent to various colleges, secondary and
primary schools in Huanren County.

The construction work of Xiguan Project has been completed
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and the Group accounted
for 100% interest in the Xiguan Project. The Group has sold
39% of the gross floor area of the Xiguan Project and has
achieved contracted sales of approximately HK$157,429,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019, while nil was recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2018. As a result, a segment profit
of approximately HK$28,066,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019 was recorded while a segment loss at the amount of
approximately HK$388,000 was recorded for the year ended 31
March 2018.

On 10 April 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest of Benxi Zhongfu Shiye Company Limited* (&
B EEEAMRRAA("Benxi Zhongfu”). The Company, through
the acquisition, indirectly acquires the land use right of a parcel
of land located at Bagua City, Huanren County, Benxi, Liaoning
Province, the PRC with a floor area of approximately 5,023 sq.m.
and construction area of approximately 7,500 sq.m. and for
other commercial use. The land reserve is expected to generate
continuous growth for the Group.

Since early 2018, the central government has repeatedly
reiterated that “homes are for living, not for speculation”. It
is believed that the central government will launch different
measures under the macroeconomic control policy on the
properties development industry in order to maintain a healthy
property market. The Board is optimistic towards the properties
development business and will continue to seek for potential
investment opportunities proactively.

* for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

PROSPECT

Looking forward, it is believed that the forthcoming year remains
challenging all over the markets, especially on the rising threat
from the global trade war caused by the government policy
of the USA. However, leveraging on the extensive experience
and network of the management of the Group, the Group will
adhere to its strategy of focusing on the business in properties
development as well as clean energy development in the PRC
and other thriving sectors. Furthermore, the Group will continue
to seek for possible investment opportunities in different
industries and to expand the revenue streams of the Group in
order to generate better results and prospect for the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2019, bank balances and cash increased to
approximately HK$75,480,000 as compared to approximately
HK$50,930,000 as at 31 March 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, gearing ratio was 0.06 (31 March 2018:
0.01). The increase in the Group’s gearing ratio was resulted
from the increase in borrowing level of the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2019. The Group will continue to monitor
and manage its financial structure and their potential risks in the

course of development.

As at 31 March 2019, the current ratio was 2.54 (31 March
2018: 3.91). The current ratio of the Group was maintained at a
healthy level.

Financing and Capital Structure

The Group finances its operations by a combination of
equity and borrowings. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
had borrowings of approximately HK$23,226,000 (31 March
2018: HK$4,900,000) and bond payable of approximately
HK$1,000,000 (31 March 2018: Nil), which were for the Group’s
refinancing and general corporate purpose. As at 31 March
2019, the Group’s borrowings and bond payable were interest
bearing from 5.45% to 12% (31 March 2018: 5.45%) and 6.5%
(31 March 2018: Nil), respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s transactions
were mostly denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and Canadian dollars. The Group did not
have significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation as the
management monitors the related foreign currencies closely and
will consider hedging for significant foreign currency exposure, if

necessary.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2019, borrowings of approximately
HK$22,177,000 granted to the Group are secured by the
investment properties of the Group (31 March 2018: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 March 2018: Same).

Employee

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of 60 employees
(31 March 2018: 64), of which 46 (31 March 2018: 47) were
employed overseas. The total amount of staff costs of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately
HK$35,758,000 (2018: HK$32,806,000). The employees’
remuneration, promotion and salary increments are assessed
based on both individual's and the Group’'s performance,
professional and working experience and by reference to
prevailing market practice and standards. In addition, the Group
also provides employee benefits such as employee insurance,

retirement scheme and training programs.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Properties
Development” in this section, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal during the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business Review”
and “Material Acquisition And Disposal” in this section, the
Group did not have any significant investment held for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSET

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business
Review"”, “Prospect” and “Material Acquisition And Disposal”
in this section, the Company will actively seek for potential
opportunities in different industries and business sectors.
However, the Group has not executed any legally binding
agreement in relation to material investment or acquisition of
capital assets and did not have any plans relating to material
investment or capital assets as at the date of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries have purchased or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Completion of acquisition and the issuance of consideration
shares

With reference to the announcements of the Company dated
26 March 2019 and 10 April 2019 in relation to the acquisition
of 100% equity interest of Benxi Zhongfu, the acquisition
was completed on 10 April 2019 and a total of 280,000,000
consideration shares were allotted to the vendor pursuant to the
acquisition agreement.

Change of address of the principal place of business in
Hong Kong and telephone and facsimile numbers

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated 31
May 2019, the address of the principal place of business in Hong
Kong of the Company has been changed to Suites 2602-2603,
26/F., Tower 1, The Harbourfront, 18 Tak Fung Street, Hunghom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong and the telephone and facsimile numbers
of the Company have been changed to (852) 2286 0728 and (852)
2286 0727 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D T

Change of address of Hong Kong branch registrar and
transfer office

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated
27 June 2019, the address of Tricor Secretaries Limited, being
the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of
the Company, was changed to Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong with effect from 11 July 2019.

Change of registered office

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated 10
July 2019, the registered office of the Company in Bermuda was
changed to Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM 10, Bermuda with effect from 15 July 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENGREEEEBE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jing, aged 64, is the executive Director and the
chairman of the Board. He joined our Group in July 2014.
He is a vice chairman of Liaoning Federation of Industry and
Commerce* (EEATE¥BAE), a Liaoning Province Model
Worker* (BZEHLE)EE) in 2006, and a member of People’s
Congress of Benxi City* (&K Zm A KM &). He has founded
Liaoning Shihua Group GEZ E# £ E) (“Liaoning Shihua Group”)
and he had been appointed as the general manager of Liaoning
Shihua (Group) Property Development Limited* (REEZE(£EH)
EHER % AR A R])("Liaoning Shihua”) since April 2007. He
currently acts as the chairman of Liaoning Shihua Group. He has
also been an executive member of the Property Development
Industry Association of Liaoning Province* ((ZBEREMEITER
GEMKIEE) since March 2012. In February 2014, Mr. Wang was
awarded as a Liaoning Province Excellent Builder* (BEZEEEF
#3%#) by various organizations including the Liaoning United
Front Work Department of the Chinese Communist Party* (/1 k
FEEAZFEIL). As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wang
is the sole director and beneficial owner of the equity interest in
Liaoning Shihua, being the substantial shareholder of the Group.
Details of his interest in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report”.
Save as aforesaid, Mr. Wang did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies in the last three years. Mr. Wang Jing is
the father of Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, the executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, aged 31, is the executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company. He joined our Group
in July 2014. Mr. Wang graduated in the University of Toronto
with a bachelor’s degree in commerce with high distinction in
2009. He also obtained a master of philosophy degree in finance
from the Judge Business School of the University of Cambridge
in 2010. He is currently the deputy general manager of Liaoning
Shihua and is also the Shenyang regional general manager of
Liaoning Shihua. Mr. Wang is also a director of 13 subsidiaries
of the Group. Details of his interest in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company are set out in the section headed

* for identification purposes only

14  China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

X

BITES

ITRAE 645 RATESEREZTRER - K
RZZ-—MELAMARER - RREEETIEHE
BEgRITRE —TERFEELESPEHLLEZR
MAARKR - BRUBEBEEBR([BEEEER
B YE_TTLFMNAEEZEREERE
(EE)FEHEREAERAR([EEEE ) BAKE -
BREETEEEERETF -HIAB_FT——F
CARREEERHETEHEEBESE RN
Z-—MFE_f FEARZERB(EETHAEER
EERBAIREBEELEFTERE - RAFHRA
B ITRAREBREEE WM EEREBEESHESR
AN BEBREDNAEETIEZRR - RRARR KRG
RN ZERFBERRNEZTRREEIEH -
Bbdsh MBE=F EREVEREM TR
FIEAEMEERMN - TRELERARARNTES
RITBRHBTESEREZRNR - ERENRRARTA
RELZBEERE -

ITEBRE 315 RARARITES RITHAE
e BFR_F-HFEAMAREE - THRER
ZENFEENZHREAE  UWESHESRLEM
(BR) -BIAR T ZTFRGRABALRELTHER
ieBES2BETEM - WREREETEZAIEK
B TRAEEEEEGMERAKLE - TEETAAR
SEBRMBARES - RNARE RN RIARE
Btz BEFHBHNEERRES |5 - Lt



DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERGREEERE

“Directors’ Report”. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Wang did not hold
any directorship in other listed companies in the last three years.
He is the son of Mr. Wang Jing, the executive Director and
chairman of the Board.

Mr. Zhao Shuang, aged 39, is the executive Director. He
joined our Group in July 2014. He graduated from Changchun
University in 2002, majored in marketing and sales. Mr. Zhao
was appointed as the head of assets management of Liaoning
Shihua Group in 2009 and later the general manager of Liaoning
Shihua Group responsible for assets management in January
2014. Prior to joining Liaoning Shihua Group, Mr. Zhao was a
project manager, an assistant to general manager and a vice
general manager of Dalian Dongzhan Group Co. Ltd* (RiERE
EEARAR]) from 2002 to 2009. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Zhao
did not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the
last three years.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Ping, aged 49, is the independent non-executive
Director. He joined our Group in July 2014. Mr. Wang has
over 18 years of experience in corporate finance, audit and
accounting. Mr. Wang is currently acting as the non-executive
director of Chongyi Zhangyuan Tungsten Co., Ltd, shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002378.sz) and Bojun Education Limited, shares of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 1758), the independent non-executive
director of China Hangking Holdings Limited, shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3788), China Tianrui
Group Cement Company Limited, shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1252), Jia Yao Holdings Limited,
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (formerly
known as Tourism International Holdings Limited) (stock code:
1626), Shenzhen Zowee Technology Co., Ltd, shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002369.
sz) and Yunnan Energy New Material Co Ltd, shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (formerly known as
Yunan Chuangxin New Material Co,. Ltd.) (stock code: 002812.
sz).

* for identification purposes only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERGREEERE

Mr. Wang worked as vice president in EV Capital Pte Ltd from
May 2007 to March 2010. From February 2004 to March 2007,
he served as chief financial officer for China Jishan Holdings
Limited, shares of which are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Limited (stock code: J18). From September 1999 to August
2002, he served as a senior accountant and subsequently a
manager for audit department of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA
Ltd. He was also an executive director and the chief financial
officer of China First Capital Group Limited, shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (formerly known as China Vehicle
Components Technology Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1269),
from April 2014 to December 2015 and from March 2012 to
December 2015 respectively. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Wang did
not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the last
three years.

Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University majoring in
Economics and Management in 1993 and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Lingnan (University)
College of Sun Yat-Sen University in 2004. He is a non-practising
member of Shanghai Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wang is the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Song Wenke, aged 44, is the independent non-executive
Director. He joined our Group in July 2016. Mr. Song was
graduated from the Dalian University of Technology with major
in business administration. He has extensive experience in
corporate operations and management. Mr. Song has acted as
the deputy director of Dalian PiMi Marine Biological Research
Institute* (R KEFEWIFIPT) since June 2016. Save as
aforesaid, Mr. Song did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the last three years. Mr. Song is the chairman of
the remuneration committee and the member of audit committee
and nomination committee of the Company.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. Zeng Guanwei, aged 31, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 30 April 2019. Mr. Zeng received
his bachelor’s degree in engineering from University of Central
Lancashire in the United Kingdom in June 2009 and a master of
philosophy from University of Cambridge in the United Kingdom
in July 2011. He has over 8 years of experience in engineering
and finance. Mr. Zeng worked at Huawei Technologies (UK)
Co., Ltd from July 2010 to December 2012. He then established
Beijing Wolfson Technology Company Limited* (b5 K KFREHR
AR EE2AQA]) in August 2014 and has been the chief executive
officer since then. Mr. Zeng has also been working at Beijing
L83

&HMR A, of which he is a shareholder, as a general manager

= A=

Hefu Zhongging Investment Company Limited* (ItR& =

since June 2016. Save as aforesaid, Mr. Zeng did not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the last three years.
Mr. Zeng is the member of the audit committee, remuneration

committee and nomination committee of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zeng is interested in
5,510,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
0.13% of the total issued share capital of the Company. Details
of his interest in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report”.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gary Atkinson, aged 38, joined The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. in January 2008 and was appointed as the
interim chief executive officer in November 2009. Mr. Atkinson
is a licensed attorney in the State of Florida and Georgia. He
graduated from the University of Rochester with a bachelor’s
degree in Economics and was awarded a dual-degree J.D./
M.B.A. from Case Western Reserve University School of Law and
Weatherhead School of Management.

Mr. Peter Horak, aged 80, was appointed as the chief executive
officer of Cosmo Communication Canada Inc. in January 2001.
He is also the co-founder of Cosmo Communication Canada
Inc.. Mr. Horak has extensive knowledge and experience in
distribution of consumer electronic products in Canada. Prior
to joining Cosmo Canada, Mr. Horak worked with several top
electronic companies and served as Sanyo’s vice president of
sales and marketing. He leads the sales team to open new
markets and develop new products and works closely with the
administrative group and warehouse supporting group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERKE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interest of its
shareholders and enhance the performance of the Group. The
Directors firmly believe that the maintenance of a good, solid
and sensible framework of corporate governance will ensure
the Company to run its business in the best interests of its
shareholders as a whole.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) contained in appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange as its own code on corporate
governance practices and guidance.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions except the following: —

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by
private act, the Starlight International Holdings Limited Company
Act, 1989 of Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e)
of the 1989 Act, director holding office as executive chairman or
managing director shall not be subject to retirement by rotation
at each annual general meeting as provided in the bye-laws of
the Company (“the Bye-laws"”). As the Company is bound by the
provisions of the 1989 Act, the Bye-laws cannot be amended
to fully reflect the requirements of Code Provision A.4.2 which
stipulates that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

To comply with Code Provision A.4.2, all Directors will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at the subsequent annual
general meetings of the Company at least once every three
years, provided that, the retired Directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Wang Jing, the
chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 21 September 2018 (the
“2018 AGM") due to his other engagement. Mr. Zhao Shuang,
the executive Director who took the chair of the 2018 AGM,
together with other members of the Board who attended the
2018 AGM, were of sufficient caliber for answering questions
at the 2018 AGM and answered questions at the 2018 AGM
competently.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
director and other non-executive director should attend general
meeting and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Mr. Wang Ping and Mr. Song Wenke, the
independent non-executive Directors, were unable to attend the
2018 AGM due to other business commitments.

In order to comply with the Code Provisions, the Company will
continue to furnish all Directors with appropriate information on
all general meetings and take all reasonable measures to arrange
the schedule in such a caution that may enable all Directors to
attend the general meeting as far as possible.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has complied with all Code Provisions during the year
ended 31 March 2019 and, where appropriate, the applicable

recommended best practices of the Code Provisions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board is responsible for leading the Group in a responsive
and effective manner. Each Director has to carry out his
duties in utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the shareholders. The duties of the Board include establishing
the strategic direction of the Group, setting objectives and
monitoring the performance of the Group.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of
three executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. More than one-third of the Board members are
independent non-executive Directors which enables the Board
to make decisions and judgement in an independent and
professional manner, assists the management in formulating the
Company’s development strategies, achieving corporate goals

and monitoring the Company’s performance.

All Directors have entered into formal service contracts or letters
of appointment with the Company, each for a fixed term of
two years and renewable automatically for successive terms of
one year each commencing from the day after the expiry of
the current term of the appointment. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in
accordance to the Memorandum of Association of the Company
(the “Memorandum of Association”). Also, pursuant to the
Article of 77 of the Memorandum of Association, any Director
being appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.

As at the date of this annual report, the members of the Board

are as follows:—

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jing (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Shuang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Ping

Mr. Song Wenke

Mr. Zeng Guanwei (Note)

Note: With effect from 30 April 2019, Mr. Zeng Guanwei was appointed

as independent non-executive Director.
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The Board has established schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision and those reserved for
the management. The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic
basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Company. The brief biographical details and relationship of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors’ And
Senior Management’s Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. Wang Jing, the chairman of the Board and the executive
Director, is the father of Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, the chief
executive officer of the Company and the executive Director.
Save as disclosed herein, the Board members have no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship with
each other.

Role of the Board

The Board decides corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and evaluates the Group’'s financial performance and
management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the
Group’s management include the implementation of strategies
approved by the Board, the monitoring of operating budgets,
the implementation of internal controls procedures, and the
ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
other rules and regulations.

All Directors have full and timely access to the information of
the Company as well as the advices and services of the company
secretary. The Board, may, upon request, seek for independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses to assist them to perform their duties.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below: —

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices

on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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RUTEETEBTEEZXNR - BAFHRAWE
Sy BEERKBZEBENR - X5 - Rik - Hb
BERHARRERE - .
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4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report under appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To comply with Code Provision A.2.1, the chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer of the Company were separated and
held by Mr.

The chairman of the Company is responsible for the Group’s

Wang Jing and Mr. Wang Xing Qiao respectively.
strategic planning and directions and to provide leadership of
the Board while the chief executive officer takes the lead in the
daily operations and business development.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors, all of whom are
independent of the management of the Company, are highly
experienced professionals coming from diversified background.
They ensure that the Board maintains high standard of financial
and other mandatory reportings as well as providing adequate
checks and balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders of
the Company and the Company as a whole.

The Board confirms that the Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of
independence for the year ended 31 March 2019 pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Director’s Training and Professional Development

Under Code Provision A.6.5, directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills; and to ensure that their contributions to
the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year ended
31 March 2019, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with Code Provision A.6.5 by reading materials provided by the
company secretary of the Company and/or attending regular
trainings on the topics relating to corporate governance and
latest change and development of regulatory regime launched by
professional parties.
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Board Meetings and Attendance Records of Directors

Board meetings are held regularly at approximately quarterly
intervals to review the financial and operating performance of
the Group and held on ad hoc basis as required by the business
needs. All Directors are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda and give opinion. Regular Board
meetings and ad hoc Board meetings are attended by a majority
of the Directors in person or through other electronic means
of communication. In addition, all Directors are encouraged to
attend the general meetings of the Company. The company
secretary of the Company records all matters considered by the
Board, decisions reached and any concerns raised or dissenting
views expressed by the Directors. Minutes of meetings are kept
by the company secretary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board held a total of
four Board meetings and one general meeting:

EXREBRESHETE

EEREREENESEFTERT X UEHAE
BYBERhE2ERR  NAREBHTERTHERS
#o2RESURARPHEAUMRS R EEL L
TER -ABOEFHRIIEBEMETBATA
HEFHREFRERMBRESERSFH - S 2
REZOZB2NARANRRAE - ARRZA
AMELBESRUMAFTRENES  ENMNRTE
REFUREMERZEEIXRENREER - &
BLBAARRZARMERRT -

BE-_Z—NF=A=+—BLFE "
TTHREERGER —RAREXRE :
Numbers of Numbers of

Board meetings General Meetings

Names of Directors EEHSE attended/held attended/held
HEReT HRE AT

EEREBRAE BREREESERK

Wang Jing T 4/4 0/1
Wang Xing Qiao TE3 4/4 0/1
Zhao Shuang iz B 4/4 171
Wang Ping ¥ 4/4 0/1
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (Note) B (MEFT) 4/4 171
Song Wenke X F 4/4 0/1
Note: With effect from 30 April 2019, Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny Mz BZZ—NAFMA=THE BRHOLEEHFRTSE

resigned as independent non-executive Director and Mr. Zeng
Guanwei was appointed as the independent non-executive
Director.
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DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), as the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. The Company has
made specific enquiry of all Directors that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March

2019.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and enhance its
expertise, the Company established three Board committees
namely, the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Each of the committees performs

different functions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with defined terms of
reference in alignment with the recommendations set out in
“A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Code
the composition of the

Provisions. During the reporting year,

audit committee was as below: —

Mr. Wang Ping (Chairman)
Mr. Song Wenke
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwun Sunny (Note)

Note: With effect from 30 April 2019, Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny
resigned as a member of audit committee and Mr. Zeng Guanwei

was appointed as the member of audit committee.
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The audit committee members meet no less than twice a year
with the senior management and the external auditors. The
role and function of the audit committee include the review of
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and other financial reporting matters, the assurance of the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statements
of the Group, monitor the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems throughout the Group and
most importantly, the review of all significant business affairs
managed by the executive Directors in particular on connected

transactions.

The audit committee also provides advices and recommendations
to the Board and oversees all matters relating to the external
auditors, as well as monitors and safeguards the independence
of external auditors. The audit committee met twice during the
financial year ended 31 March 2019. Works undertook by the
audit committee included:

o reviewing of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and for the six months ended 30
September 2018;

o reviewing of the auditor’'s fees and its re-appointment;
and
o reviewing internal control and risk management system.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established with defined
terms of reference. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
remuneration committee comprises three independent non-

executive Directors and the composition was as below: —

Mr. Song Wenke (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Ping
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (Note)

Note: With effect from 30 April 2019, Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny
resigned as a member of remuneration committee and Mr.
Zeng Guanwei was appointed as the member of remuneration

committee.
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The primary objective of the remuneration committee is to make
recommendation on the remuneration package and structure of
the executive Directors and senior management. In designing
the remuneration policy, the Company aims to attract and
retain executives needed to operate the Group successfully and
to motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst taking into account the performance of the individuals.
The remuneration should reflect the performance, complexity and
responsibility of the individual; and the remuneration package
should include salary, bonus and share options scheme in order
to provide incentives to Directors and senior management and to

improve their individual performances.

Details of the emoluments of directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration committee members met once during the
financial year ended 31 March 2019. Work undertook by the
remuneration committee during the reporting year included: —

o reviewing of the remuneration policy for 2018/2019; and

o reviewing of the remuneration package of the Directors

and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors
regarding the qualification and competency of the candidates.
It also considers the reappointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors so as to ensure that all nominations and
appointments are fair and transparent. It takes responsibility
in assessing the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills
and diversity required for the Board and assessing the extent to
which the required skills are represented on the Board. It is also
responsible for reviewing and reporting to the Board in relation
to Board diversity.
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Board Diversity Policy

In addition, the Company formulated and adopted a Board
diversity policy in 2013, aiming at setting out the approach on
diversity of the Board. The Board recognizes the importance
of having a diverse Board in enhancing the effectiveness and
corporate governance of the Board. A diverse Board makes
good use of differences in the skills, industry knowledge
and experience, education background and other qualities of
Directors and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age,
gender or religious belief. These differences will be taken into
account in determining the optimum composition of the Board
and when possible should be balanced appropriately. During the
year ended 31 March 2019, the composition of the nomination

committee was as below: —

Mr. Wang Jing (Chairman)
Mr. Song Wenke
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (Note)

Note: With effect from 30 April 2019, Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

resigned as a member of nomination committee and Mr. Zeng
Guanwei was appointed as the member of nomination committee.

The nomination committee members met once during the
financial year ended 31 March 2019. Work undertook by the
nomination committee during the reporting year included: —

o reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

o making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
o reviewing and make recommendations to the Board on

re-election of retiring Directors; and

o reviewing and make recommendations to the Board on

appointment of Directors.
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COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The attendance record of each committee members during the
year ended 31 March 2019 is shown as below: —

ZEEE;
HE-F-AEZA=t-ALFEEEAERA
2 WRRESFINT : -

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors EENE Committee Committee Committee

BIitEEE FTMHEES REZEE
Wang Jing B N/A 3 A N/A A3 B 11
Wang Ping TF 2/2 11 N/A i
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (Note) Z5K$5(F5F) 2/2 11 11
Song Wenke R E} 2/2 1/1 1/1
Note: With effect from 30 April 2019, Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny Mizf: B-Z—AFNA=Z1+HBE BAHLLEHTS

resigned as independent non-executive Director and Mr. Zeng
Guanwei was appointed as the independent non-executive
Director.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Mr. Lam Wai Kei was the
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam Wai Kei has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no material changes to the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws for the year ended 31 March 2019.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the total fee pay/payable
in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
Group’s external auditors are set out below:—

UHRITEE METHELERZTERBIULIFHN
TES -

DNRWE
BE_Z-NF=A=T—BHILHFE MEELE
RARBZRARWE  -MEBEELECEEET LD
MAIE3. 2916 E BEXIFIIRE -

ABER
BE-2 - NF=A=+-BILEE ASSRA
ARAAEEEADD -

BN B &=
BE-Z-NF=A=T—HILFE  HEEEH
R AT IR R B SRR B RS AT 2 B
RBEHINWT -

Type of service PR A% R Fee paid/payable for the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-ALFEIHN EBAERESE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
Audit services %R TS HK$2,633,000 HK$2,427,000
2,633,000/ 7T 2,427,000/ 7T
Non-audit services SEZ B R N/A 73 F N/A T35 A
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR PREPARING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides explanation and information to the
Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the applicable laws were complied with. The
Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cause significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern. The Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The
reporting responsibilities of external auditor of the Company are
disclosed in “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

INTERNAL CONTROL & RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The system
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
safeguards its assets against unauthorized use of disposition,
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensures compliances with relevant laws and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage the risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s objectives. The
Company currently does not have an internal audit function. The
Board reviews the internal control system and risk management
from time to time and at least once a year. During the year, the
Company has conducted a review on the effectiveness towards
the system of internal controls, including risk management
system and the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and made recommendations to follow up. The
Company considered the internal control and risk management
systems effective and adequate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group established policy and procedure to handle and
disclose inside information in compliance with the requisite
inside information disclosure requirements as specified under the
Listing Rules. The policy and procedure are designed to ensure
that any material information which comes to the knowledge of
any one or more officers should be promptly identified, assessed
and escalated, where appropriate, for the attention of the Board.
The Board shall make timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary
and take appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information until proper disclosure of inside information is
done.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy aims to ensure that the Board maintains
an appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending
the dividend payment of the Company. The Board endeavors
to strike a balance between the shareholders’ interests and
prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend policy.
Payment of dividends shall be determined at the sole discretion
of the Board of the Company, except the final dividend shall
be subjected to shareholders’ approval at general meeting.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board will take into
account, inter alia, the financial results, cash flow, liquidity and
capital requirements, current and future business operations,
conditions, cycle and strategies of the Group and the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The Company’s
distribution of dividends shall also be subject to any restrictions
under the 1989 Act and the Memorandum of Association and
Bye-laws as well as all applicable laws, rules and regulations. The
dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time. The dividend
policy allows the Board to declare special dividends from time to
time in addition to the interim and/or annual dividends. There
is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATION

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with the shareholders of the Company. Information in relation to
the Group is disseminated to the shareholders of the Company
in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars of the Company. The general meetings of the Company
are valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the shareholders of the Company. The shareholders of
the Company are encouraged to attend the general meetings
of the Company. An annual general meeting of the Company
was held on 21 September 2018. A notice convening the 2018
AGM was included in the circular dated 20 August 2018 and
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2018 were despatched to the shareholders of the Company.
The Board attended the 2018 AGM to answer questions from
the shareholders of the Company. The chairman of the meeting
of 2018 AGM explained detailed procedures for conduction of
a poll. All resolutions proposed at the 2018 AGM were passed
separately by the shareholders of the Company by way of poll.
The results of the poll were published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company after the meetings.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Group’s development.

The Company has maintained a company website (www.00485.hk)
for the purpose of updating the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, news and

other data available to the public.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general meeting

and put forward proposals at general meeting. Please refer to

the procedures as follows:

(A)

(B)

Procedures for requisitioning a special general
meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bye-laws, Bermuda Companies Act
1981 (the “Companies Act”), require the Directors to call
a special general meeting for the transaction of business
specified in the requisition.

Procedure for putting forward proposals at general

meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 shareholders may, at their expense, provide a
written request to the attention of the company secretary
signed and deposited in accordance with the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Besides, the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are

posted on the website of the Company at www.00485.hk

and the designated website of the Stock Exchange at www.

hkexnews.hk.
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CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries or
requests by post or email to the Company:

Address: Suites 2602-2603, 26/F., Tower 1, The Harbourfront,
18 Tak Fung Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong (with the
Board of Directors as designated recipient)

Tel: +852 2286 0728
Fax: +852 2286 0727
Email: office@00485.hk

Shareholders of the Company must deposit or send (as the case
may be) the original of the duly signed written requisitions,
notices or statements or enquires to the above address, and
provide their full names, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of
corporate governance reflects the quality of the management
and the operations of the Group’s business. Good corporate
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective
allocation of resources and to protect shareholders’ interests.
The management wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice
in corporate governance and will try our best to maintain,
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the Group's
corporate governance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HERERRE

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the "ESG Report”) for the year ended
31 March 2019. The ESG Report summarizes the policies and
achievement made by the Group in corporate social responsibility

and sustainability development.

We believe that sustainability is crucial and important for the
Group’s development and to achieve business excellence and
enhance capabilities for long-term competitiveness. The Group
will continue to strive a balance among business development,
environmental protection and social responsibility and to create
sustainable value for the Group and stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not
observe any material non-compliance on the applicable social
and environmental laws and regulations that has a significant
impact on the Group.

REPORTING SCOPE

This report covers the performance of the Group in the
environmental and social aspects of its businesses, namely the
electronic products business, hydroelectric power business,
properties investment business and properties development

business during the reporting period.

For corporate governance of the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual

report.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” of the Stock Exchange
set out in appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The ESG Report
provides a simplified overview on the environmental, social
and governance performance of the Group. The information in
the ESG Report is derived from the integration and summary
conducted by the management and the operational information

provided by the subsidiaries of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R

CHERERRE

STAKEHOLDERS" ENGAGEMENT

We believe that good communication with the investors,

shareholders, employees and other stakeholders is the

foundation for the Group to formulate its policies for sustainable

development. We attach great importance to the opinions of the

stakeholders and drive attentions and perform regular reviews

on those areas.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our

environmental, social and governance approach and

performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email: office@00485.hk.

A.

ENVIRONMENT

Sustainable development has been adopted as an
objective of the Group. Throughout the reporting
period, the Group created an environmentally friendly
workplace for our employees and introduced a series of
environmental protection policies aiming to reduce the
energy consumption in daily operations and enhance the
efficiency on the use of resources.

Emission

The Group is committed to minimizing air and greenhouse
gas emissions which are derived from the daily operations
at offices of the Group and striving to mitigate the
damages and risks to the environment. Policies were
formulated and adopted which aim at complying with
the applicable requirements of the laws, regulations and
standards in the USA, Europe, the PRC and Hong Kong.
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Based on the review during the reporting period, the
Group's businesses did not generate significant air and
greenhouse gas emissions and those were indirectly and
mainly derived from the consumption of electricity and
paper at the workplace, vehicles and business travels
by the employees. The discharge into water and land,
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste during

the course of operations was minimal.

The Group set up offices in different regions, including
Hong Kong, the PRC, Canada and the USA for business
operations, the electricity consumed by the Group at its
offices was approximately 210,000kWh, producing CO,
equivalent emissions of approximately 259,000 kg during
the year ended 31 March 2019.

Non-hazardous waste produced was mainly from office
paper. The Group introduced various policies and
encouraged its employees to go paperless as much as
possible. During the reporting period, the Group used
a total of approximately 323,000 pieces of papers in its
daily operations.

Use of Resources

In order to make full use of resources, the Group has
undertaken various measures to demonstrate our efforts
in efficient use of resources in daily operations. Further,
the Group believes that the participation of its employees
is also important for the Group in the implementation of
related policies. Hence, the Group has strived to create
a corporate culture of resources saving and to enhance
employees’ awareness of environmental protection and
energy saving. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Group didn’t purchase any motor vehicles, all employees
were encouraged to use public transportation for business

travels.
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To reduce paper consumption, the Group encouraged
its employees to reduce the usage of photocopies,
print double-sided for internal documents and external
documents, where appropriate, use electronic copies.
Recycle boxes and bins were placed at offices to
collect non-reusable paper and waste. The Group also
encouraged its employees to segregate non-recyclable and
recyclable waste and reuse and recycle the office supplies,
such as binders, file folders and papers. Furthermore, in
order to reduce waste and to recycle resources, suppliers
are regularly arranged to collect used printing cartridges
and toners for recycling purpose.

To reduce electricity consumption, the air-conditioners
installed at offices were maintained at room temperature
of 25.5 degree which could reduce the usage of excess
electricity. The Group also kept reminding the employees
to switch off the lights and air-conditioners when not in
use to lower the electricity consumption. In addition, the
Group encouraged the use of the most efficient travelling
method and set up video-conference and teleconference
facilities at offices to minimize unnecessary business
travels which may subsequently reduce greenhouse gas
emissions from air travels.

In respect of water consumption, the impact was minimal
and non-significant amount of water was wasted in the
daily business activities during the reporting period. The
cost of water consumption of the Company is inclusive in
the monthly rent and the building management does not
individually measure water consumptions of each tenant
hence no relevant data can be collected.

We are committed to minimizing the consumption of
packaging materials and to use environmentally friendly
materials as much as possible. Furthermore, in selecting
suppliers or cooperation partners, the Group takes into
consideration, among others, their environmental and
energy policies, to maximize environmental protection and
minimize pollution.
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The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group has been supporting the development in
renewable energy since 2016 and it has become one of
the core businesses of the Group. With reference to the
section headed “Management Discussion And Analysis”,
the Group engaged in the business of the renewable
energy and operated two hydroelectric power stations
in the Northern China during the year ended 31 March
2019. The installed capacity of the two hydroelectric
power stations are 3,500kw and 3,200kw respectively and
those hydroelectric power stations are connected to the
national power grid.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the two
hydroelectric power stations generated a total of
electricity of approximately 16,500,000kw which
supported the commercial and residential use via the
national power grid in the PRC during the reporting year.

Moreover, the Group started to engage in properties
development business since the financial year of 2018.
During the year, our business units worked closely with
the contractors and communicated clearly with them
about our concerns and requirements in respect of the
environment protection through written specifications,
legal requirement and regular on-site checking.

Our business units and contractors also adopted various
approaches to manage the environment impacts of
the development projects. Environment considerations
are integrated in the planning, design, development
and execution of our projects. Our construction team
further seek for professional advices and proposals from
experts to eliminate the detrimental effect towards the
soil and ecosystem. In addition, we noticed that noise
and vibration are inevitably generated through the use
of machines when carrying out construction work, but
we strive to minimize disturbances to nearby residents
and establish a communication channel to address their

concerns.
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes that employees are the most important
asset of the Group. During the reporting period, the
Group complied with all relevant laws, regulations and
rules related to compensation, dismissal, recruitment
and promotion to protect the rights and benefits of the

employees.

Moreover, the Group offers remuneration packages at a
competitive level and reviews them on a regular basis in
order to recruit and retain the employees. The employees’
remuneration, promotion and salary increments are
assessed based on both individual’s and the Group's
performance, professional and working experience and
by reference to prevailing market practice and standards.
The Group also promotes equal opportunity for employees
towards gender, race, religion, age, disability, sexual
orientation, nationality, political opinion, or social or
ethnic origin. No employee is allowed to be subject
to any form of discrimination on recruitment, training
development and career development. As at 31 March
2019, the Group had total of 60 employees of which 46
were employed overseas.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment for all employees and believes that it can
enhance their sense of belonging and productivity. The
Group requires all departments in different regions to
strictly follow relevant laws and regulations in relation to
safe working environment and protection for occupational
hazards, such as the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance in Hong Kong. Workplaces are properly
designed with emergency exits and first aid facilities are
installed. During the year ended 31 March 2019, there
was no work-related fatalities.
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Development and Training

The Group conceives that training plays an important
role for personal development, work efficiency and
productivity. The Group encourages its employees to
participate in different training programs to improve
knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. During the reporting period, employee, senior
management and Directors engaged in different
training programs provided by the government, non-
profit statutory or professional bodies and professional
education centers.

Labour Standards

The Group complies with the relevant labour laws,
regulations and rules in its operating regions, including
Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Canada and the USA. In
our offices located in Hong Kong, we comply with, in all
material respects, the following relevant codes of practice
and ordinances during the process of employment,
remuneration, promotion and termination: the Hong
Kong Sex Discrimination Ordinance issued by the Equal
Opportunities Commission, Disability Discrimination
Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination Ordinance and
Race Discrimination Ordinance and the Employment
Ordinance. In order to prevent child and forced labour,
the Group conducts background checks, such as age,
academic qualification, previous job references, so as to
ensure the employees meet the minimum age standard
and applicable laws in those designated regions.

Supply Chain Management

To maintain the quantity as well as the quality of our
products, the Group emphasizes on the selection of
suppliers and maintains an approved list of the suppliers
in which the admission is subject to the assessment of
their background, quality and quantity of the products,
prices and response to suggestions and customers’
feedback. Moreover, the management team reviews and
updates the list from time to time. Regular meetings are
arranged between suppliers and management team for
the improvement of products and review on customers’
feedback.
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For the Group’s business in the trading of electronic
products, 100% of products purchased were
manufactured by factories in the PRC during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Product Responsibility

The Group strictly follows the applicable and relevant
laws and regulations related to products standards,
quality control and labeling. In addition, it also requires
its suppliers to comply with the same standard as well
as other applicable laws and regulations in respect of
product safety, quality control, measurement and labeling.

Furthermore, efforts have been made to enhance
the attentions of our suppliers and clients regarding
environmental protection and energy conservation. One of
our major businesses is the trading of electronic products.
We have set up policies and procedures to ensure our
electronic products, such as karaoke machines, meet the
safety standards imposed in various national, state, local,
and provincial jurisdictions. Our karaoke machines sold in
the USA are designed, manufactured and tested to meet
the safety standards of Underwriters Laboratories, Inc.
(“ULE") or Electronic Testing Laboratories (“ETL").

In Europe and other foreign countries, our products
are manufactured to meet the Consumer Electronics
("CE") marking requirements. CE marking is a mandatory
European product marking and certification system for
certain designated products. When affixed to a product
and product packaging, CE marking indicates that a
particular product complies with all applicable European
product safety, health and environmental requirements
within the CE marking system. Products complying with
CE marking are now accepted to be safe in 28 European
countries. However, ULE or ETL certification does not
mean that a product complies with the product safety,
health and environmental regulations contained in all
fifty states in the USA. Therefore, the Group maintains
a quality control program designed to ensure the
compliance with all applicable USA and federal laws
pertaining to the sale of our products.
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Returns of Goods

For the Group’s business in the trading of electronic
products, we allow the return of electronic hardware
and music products by customers due to damages and
incorrect shipments. The Group’s policy is to give credit
to customers for the returns in conjunction with the
receipt of new replacement purchase orders.

Trademarks and Patents

We believe that trademarks are a significant asset of
the Group as they provide product recognition. We
have applied and obtained registered trademarks for the
subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong, Australia, the
USA and Europe, such as the name and logo of “The
Singing Machine”. Furthermore, we obtained two USA
design patents for karaoke machines in 2013.

Copyrights and Licenses

In respect of the business in the trading of electronic
products of the Group, we offer karaoke music
through our Singing Machine Karaoke Download Store,
Community, and iPhone/iPad App through a partnership
with Stingray Digital Group (“Stingray”). Stingray holds
all licensing agreements directly with the music publishers
and is responsible for all royalty payments. Stingray is the
leading multi-platform music service provider in the world,
with an estimated 110 million Pay-TV subscribers in 111
countries around the world. Geared towards individuals
and businesses alike, the company’s commercial entities
include leading digital music and video services Stingray
Music, Concert TV and The KARAOKE Channel.

Personal Data Protection

Regarding personal data protection and privacy, the
Group complies with applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong
Kong. Relevant rules and guidelines are also set out in
the employment contracts so as to ensure compliance.
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Anti-corruption

Integrity, ethics, fairness and honesty are the core values
of the Group. The Group formulated policies against
bribery, fraud and money laundering in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations, such as the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. Whistle-blowing
policy is also in place as a private and confidential
communication channel for all stakeholders to report
suspected misconduct or fraudulent activities to the
management of the Company. Ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the internal control systems is conducted
on a regular basis in preventing the occurrence of
corruption activities. For the year ended 31 March 2019,
there was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees
during the reporting period.

Community Investment

The Group encourages its employees to dedicate their
time to support the local community by participating
in charity activities and fund-raising events and making
donations to non-profit organization. In addition, the
Group also makes donations and contributes goods to
local charities, churches and to programs sponsored by

some of our major customers.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the design and sale of
electronic products, operation and management of hydroelectric
power stations, properties investment, properties development
and securities trading during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the financial year
of 2019, which includes an analysis of the Group’s financial
performance, particulars of important events affecting the Group
during the reporting year as well as discussion on the Group’s
future business development are provided in the section headed
“Management’s Discussion And Analysis” of this annual report.
The objectives and policies of the capital risk management and
financial risk management of the Group are set out in notes 5
and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
Discussion on the Group’s environmental issues, policies and
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the Company are contained in the section

headed “Environmental, Social And Governance Report” of this
annual report.
The Group’s key relationships with its employees, customers

and suppliers that have significant impact on the Company are

provided in the section headed “Environmental, Social And

Governance Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group established procedures and policies to ensure its
operations comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations
and that those policies and practices are regularly reviewed
for adequacy. Furthermore, senior management is delegated
with continuing responsibility to monitor compliance with all

significant legal and regulatory requirements.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, as far as it is aware, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on its business and operations.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 66 to 67. The Directors have
determined that no dividends will be paid in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of principal properties held for sale and for investment
purposes are set out in notes 19 and 29 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2019
are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders of
the Company as at 31 March 2019.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) is set out
in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements and the
paragraph headed “Share Options” in this Directors’ Report.
No shares were issued pursuant to the Scheme during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 192 of
this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has a Scheme which was approved and adopted at
the special general meeting of the Company held on 15 January
2008 for a period of 10 years. With reference to the composite
offer and response document dated 30 June 2014 jointly issued
by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited and Starlight International
Holdings Limited (currently named as “China Sinostar Group
Company Limited”) (the “Composite Document”) in respect of
the mandatory unconditional cash offers by Kingston Securities
Limited, on behalf of the Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, to
acquire all the issued shares (other than those already owned
and agreed to be acquired by the Achieve Prosper Capital
Limited and parties acting in concert with it), and to cancel all
outstanding shares options of the Company. From 21 July 2014
onward, being the latest time and date for acceptance of the
Listco Offers (as defined in the Composite Document), no shares
options were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company
under the Scheme. The Scheme expired on 15 January 2018.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to
the date of this Directors’ Report were:

Executive Directors

Wang Jing (Chairman)

Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Zhao Shuang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Wang Ping

Song Wenke

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny (Note)

Zeng Guanwei (Note)
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Note: With effect from 30 April 2019, Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

resigned as an independent non-executive Director, a member
of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company and Mr. Zeng Guanwei
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, a
member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.2, all Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at the subsequent annual general
meetings of the Company at least once every three years,
provided that, the retired Directors, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number of
transactions with entities in which the former executive Directors
have substantial shareholding. Details of those transactions are
set out in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transaction” in
this Directors’ Report. Save as disclosed above, no transactions,
arrangements and contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company, any of its controlling
entities or its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
had a material interest, directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares and
share options of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance in Hong Kong (the "SFO") which are required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the shares

Long Position/

BEERFETHRAEREAQARAHEX
AREANEMEHLERTMEMAE
BEEZRG  HEROERESR 2
EERSRE

$"*TX§$EEIE
wi@(m%ﬁ%f/%
&Hﬂé’iﬂ%f J(F’é%&ﬁﬁ/\{ Bl 1) EXVED) Z B& 1D &
% REREEQBEES R KO EXVBET
DEZHATEBNEGARA B R ZEm kA
F( BEREBES ARG ZIEIEEIREE A
BAEZRERIRE)  KO)RIBEFEFLBEGIE
352 {678 R0 8 A 1 AR IR 3% 16 151 T % Zifuaﬂﬁz
e AR S(ORBEESFAANG AR T
R 2 ABT

(i) REBRGBZRE

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital in the

Name of Directors Short Position Capacity shares held Company
RADQRE 8T

EEnA RE /%R g4 BREE RAHMYNBESHL

Executive Director

HITES

Wang Jing Long Position Interest of controlled 2,171,827,290 51.02%

corporation

T R REEREE 2 #EmR

Wang Xing Qiao Long Position Beneficial Owner 3,275,000 0.08%

TES RkE BEmEA A

Independent non-executive

Director

BUFHITES

Zeng Guanwei Long Position Beneficial Owner 5,510,000 0.13%

B4 RE BB A

Note: These 2,171,827,290 shares of the Company are held M ARNAFZE2,171,827290RBRMHEBELELRE

by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited and wholly and
beneficially owned by Hong Kong Shihua Holdings
Limited, which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned
by Liaoning Shihua. Mr. Wang Jing is the sole director of
and the beneficial owner of 82.8% of the equity interest
in Liaoning Shihua. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wang Jing is
deemed to be interested in these 2,171,827,290 shares of
the Company.
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Directors’ interests in the shares of associated (i) EENEBEIEZRA 2 EE

(ii)

corporations

Approximate

Number of percentage
ordinary of issued
shares in  share capital
Achiever in Achieve

Prosper Prosper
Name of associated Name of Long Position/ Capital Capital
corporation Director Capacity Short Position Limited Limited

RELKER REKER

BRATBIZ BRATRDHIT

R EE E R EEpE 14 RER/ KR LTRRHE RABMIBEIL
Achieve Prosper Wang Jing Interest of Long Position 1,000,000 100%
Capital Limited controlled
corporation
EERERBRAT T RRESZEE KA

Z M

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by Directors in trust for the
Company or its subsidiaries, as at the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors, chief executive of the
Company nor their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sale attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for 14% and
38% respectively of the Group’s total revenue for the year.
The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 30% and 64%
respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year. None
of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2019, the following persons, other than
the interest disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors
and chief executive's interests and/or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any specified undertaking of the Company or any other
associated corporation”, had 5% or more interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company have notified to the
Company and have been recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions required to
be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Aggregate
Number of percentage of
shares and issued share
underlying capital as at
Name of shareholders Nature of interest shares 31 March 2019
BHE=ZE-—NEF
B R =A=+—HE
BREERE R ERME HERGOGHE BITRANBDE
Achieve Prosper Capital Limited Beneficial owner 2,171,827,290 54.61%
FERERNGRAF ERERA
Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 2,171,827,290 54.61%
ERBEERBRER M EHER 2 s
Liaoning Shihua Interest of controlled corporation 2,171,827,290 54.61%
REBE REEREE 2 Ea
Hu Bao Qin Spouse interest 2,171,827,290 54.61%
HE=E BB
Lushan Investment Holding Limited (Note) Person having a security interest 2,917,914,246 73.37%
in shares
Lushan Investment Holding Limited(M5E) #ARMDEFERZAL
China Huarong Asset Management Interest of controlled corporation 2,917,914,246 73.37%
0., Ltd (Note)
PREEREETRRMNARAA (M) MNEEREEZ #Ea
China Huarong International Interest of controlled corporation 2,917,914,246 73.37%

Holdings Ltd (Note)
Fh B 2 gl B R SR AR A BR A B (B &E)

MEREEB 2 #Em

Note: These 2,917,914,246 shares of the Company are held by Lushan i : &
Investment Holding Limited and wholly and beneficially owned by
China Huarong International Holdings Ltd.

As at 31 March 2019, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited,
which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Liaoning
Shihua. Mr. Wang Jing is the sole director and the beneficial
owner of 82.8% of the equity interest in Liaoning Shihua. By
virtue of the SFO, Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited, Liaoning
Shihua, Mr. Wang Jing and Ms. Hu Bao Qin were deemed to be
interest in the said 2,171,827,290 shares of the Company held by

Achieve Prosper Capital Limited.
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On 30 December 2015, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited
transferred the 326,086,956 underlying shares of the Company
which are the conversion shares of the Company and are
issuable upon the exercise of the convertible bonds to Lushan
Investment Holding Limited. During the year ended 31 March
2018, the convertible bonds have been fully converted and a
total of 326,086,956 conversion shares of the Company was
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid to Lushan Investment
Holding Limited.

On 14 March 2016, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited entered
into a share charge with Lushan Investment Holding Limited,
pursuant to which Achieve Prosper Capital Limited has pledged
2,171,827,290 shares of the Company in favour of Lushan
Investment Holding Limited as the security for a loan facility
of HK$200,000,000. In addition, further 420,000,000 shares
of the Company held by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited was
transferred to Lushan Investment Holding Limited pursuant to
the sale and purchase agreement entered by the Achieve Prosper
Capital Limited and Lushan Investment Holding Limited (please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated on 16 March
2016 for further details).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
recorded no other interests, short positions or long positions in
shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2019, the
Group had the following non-exempted continuing connected
transaction within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:
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Framework Purchase Agreement

On 30 June 2014, SIH Limited (the “Privateco”) and Treasure
Green Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) entered
into a framework purchase agreement (the “Framework
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Privateco and
its subsidiaries (the “Privateco Group”) sold and the Company
and the remaining subsidiaries upon completion of the group
restructuring as detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 March 2014 and the distribution in specie and the
creditors’ scheme becoming effective (the “Remaining Group”)
purchased certain electronic products in accordance with the
terms of the Framework Purchase Agreement. The relevant
members of the Remaining Group and the Privateco Group
would from time to time enter into individual agreements in
respect of the sale and purchase of the relevant electronic
products. The initial term of the Framework Purchase Agreement
commenced from the date of completion of the distribution in
specie (i.e. 30 June 2014) up to and including 31 March 2015.
For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 June 2014 and the circular of the Company
dated 24 May 2014.

Since the expiration of the term of the Framework Purchase
Agreement on 1 April 2015, sale and purchase of electronic
products have been continuing among the Privateco Group and
the Remaining Group on the same terms of the Framework
Purchase Agreement. The Privateco Group and the Remaining
Group entered into another framework purchase agreement (the
“2nd Framework Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Privateco Group sold and the Remaining Group purchased certain
electronic products from time to time for a term commencing
from 21 July 2015 and ending on 31 March 2018 on 16
September 2015. According to the 2nd Framework Purchase
Agreement, the annual caps in respect of the sale of electronic
products by the Privateco Group to the Remaining Group should
not exceed (i) HK$56,000,000 during the period from 21 July
2015 to 31 March 2016; (ii) HK$80,000,000 during the period
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017; and (iii) HK$95,000,000
during the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

BEAER G

RZZ—HMEA=+H " SIH Limited ([FAAR
7)) ETreasure Green Holdings Limited (A2 &
ZHBRARDI L —MEEERGR(BEELR
=) Bl RARBIREMBAB(TFAARRE
BEDHEERARTRBTHEBAR(TATER])
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On 9 March 2016, the Privateco and Remaining Group entered
into a supplemental agreement to amend the terms of the
2nd Framework Purchase Agreement. As such, apart from the
annual cap of the transactions contemplated under the 2nd
Framework Purchase Agreement for the period from 21 July
2015 to 31 March 2016 was increased from HK$56,000,000 to
HK$57,000,000, other terms of the 2nd Framework Purchase
Agreement remain unchanged.

As the 2nd Framework Purchase Agreement expired on 31 March
2018, the Privateco and the Remaining Group entered into
another framework purchase agreement (the “3rd Framework
Purchase Agreement”) on 29 March 2018. Pursuant to the 3rd
Framework Purchase Agreement, the annual cap in respect of
the sale and purchase of the electronic products should not
exceed HK$18,000,000 during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 March 2019. All other terms and conditions remain
unchanged.

The Group sought to source electronic products from suppliers
which are independent third parties to replace the Privateco
Group and, thus, the actual transaction amount in respect
of sale of electronic products by the Privateco Group to the
Remaining Group has been reduced over the years. However, the
Group has not been able to identify suppliers of certain existing
models of electronic products so it continued to purchase certain
existing models of electronic products from the Privateco Group
in meeting demands from customers. Hence, the Remaining
Group and Privateco entered into another framework purchase
agreement (the “4th Framework Purchase Agreement”) on
28 March 2019, pursuant to which the Privateco Group will
sell and the Remaining Group will purchase certain electronic
products from time to time for a term commencing from 1
April 2019 and ending on 31 March 2020. Pursuant to the
4th Framework Purchase Agreement, the annual cap in respect
of the sale and purchase of the electronic products shall not
exceed HK$18,000,000 during the period from 1 April 2019
to 31 March 2020. For further information, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The transactions contemplated under the 4th Framework
Purchase Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules by virtue of the Privateco Group being an associate of the
Resigned Directors and thus a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level as at the date of the 4th Framework
Purchase Agreement. Given (1) the Board has approved
transactions contemplated under the 4th Framework Purchase
Agreement; and (2) the Directors (including all the independent
non-executive Directors) confirmed that the terms of the 4th
Framework Purchase Agreement are fair and reasonable, and
that the 4th Framework Purchase Agreement are on normal
commercial terms and in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole, the 4th Framework
Purchase Agreement is subject to the announcement requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is exempt from
the circular (including independent financial advice) and
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101

of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the
transactions contemplated under the 3rd Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the
table below:

HARRENGCEEERBZERSR  FLARREER
BEEENBEALT BEMALRRIRKBRRE
HHM@EEAT AFEMHOBEELGRIE T H#E
AZRGERARARN ETRREVAARZIET 2 H
BRER S ERN(MESREIEFENHEEE
RHBZETRETZIRS  RQEF(BIEDESE
VHRTER)RARAENOBEERERE 2 GHB
ANFEEE - BETMDEEERGRIZ —REEKRX
SN FAERABRANBREMERERE - Bt
FEUMNEEERBRAAET LEMANEI14ATIET
ZAERTEARE EMRANE14A101ER ST
BEA(BEBIVMEER) RREEZHRTE -

E-NBEERGEETHETZRXIUBE_F
—“NE=ZA=THALFEZFELRRERERS
SREBNTR

Annual Cap (for
the period from
1 April 2018 to

Amount 31 March 2019)
FELR
(ZE—N\#&
MA—HBHZE
—E-hEF
=A=+-8
okt LEEARS)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Purchase of electronic products from SIH ~ BSIH Limited R LB 2 71 B
Limited and its subsidiaries (Note) & FEm(MEE) HK$15,878 HK$18,000
15,8788 7T 18,0008 7T

Note: Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip is a director of SIH Limited, who is also

a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
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The amount of above transactions did not exceed the
corresponding annual cap for the period from 1 April 2018 to
31 March 2019 as announced by the Company. Pursuant to
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company
(the "Auditor”), to review the Group’s continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries for
the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions during the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March
2019 disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditors’ letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The
conclusion contained in such letter is set out below:

a) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

b) for transactions involving the provision of goods and
services by the Group, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the transactions
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

Q) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transaction; and

d) with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing
connected transaction set out above, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap as set by
the Company.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
transactions and the aforesaid Auditor’s letter and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions have been entered

into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
b) on normal commercial terms; and

) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing

such transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float not less than
25% of Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

According to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
out of the funds of the Company against all liabilities incurred
by him as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil
or criminal, in which judgment is given in favour, or in which
he is acquitted, or in connection with any application under the
Companies Act in which relief from liability is granted to him by

the court.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the financial year
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of any of the Directors (whether made by the Company or

otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

CHANGE OF AUDITOR

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated 1
June 2017, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of
the Group with effect from 1 June 2017 and ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA LIMITED was appointed as the Group’s auditor to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu with effect from 1 June 2017.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited who will retire and, be eligible to offer themselves

for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jing
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
28 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZHEHRE

ol

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA SINOSTAR GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Sinostar Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 66 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

(i) Debtors

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group tested the amount of debtors for impairment.
This impairment test is significant to our audit because
the balance of debtors of HK$100,184,000 as at 31
March 2019 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’'s impairment test
involves application of judgement and is based on
estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting
credit limits and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the Group's relationship and transaction
history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’'D)

(i)

(ii)

Debtors (CONT'D)

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for debtors
is supported by the available evidence.

Properties held for sale

Refer to note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of properties held for sale
for impairment. This impairment test is significant to our
audit because the balance of properties held for sale of
HK$201,524,000 as at 31 March 2019 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the properties
held for sale;

- Assessing the marketability of the properties held
for sale; and

- Checking subsequent sales of the properties held
for sale.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for
properties held for sale is supported by the available
evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’'D)

(iii)

62

Inventories

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of inventories for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance of inventories of
HK$50,309,000 as at 31 March 2019 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on ordering and
holding of inventories;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;

- Assessing the ageing of the inventories;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the
inventories; and

- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the

inventories.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for
inventories is supported by the available evidence.

China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’'D)

(iv)

Property, plant and equipment

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and
equipment for impairment. This impairment test is
significant to our audit because the balance of property,
plant and equipment of HK$53,295,000 as at 31 March
2019 is material to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition,
application of judgement and is based on assumptions

the Group’'s impairment test involves

and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the identification of the related cash
generating units;

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-

use calculations;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash
flow projections;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions (including revenue growth, profit
margins, terminal growth rates and discount rates);
and

- Checking input data to supporting evidence.
We consider that the Group’s impairment test for

property, plant and equipment is supported by the
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-
regulations/standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/. This description

forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Ho Yuen
Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P04309

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEREREME2EKER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Bt & FBT F&TT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEKEER
REVENUE 58 8 559,286 518,038
Cost of sales SHE AR (428,813) (386,007)
Gross profit ER 130,473 132,031
Other income E A 10 58 72
Distribution costs 2 A A (42,703) (41,366)
Administrative expenses TIHE R (89,219) (89,434)
Other gain and loss Eap e R E1E 11 2,678 (18,875)
Finance costs BT BRAR 12 (4,736) (6,905)
Share of profits of an associate FEAG B & 2 =) A 762 364
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION RRBLATES 1B (2,687) (24,113)
Taxation A 15 (9,037) 115
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM FERBBELEERKZEIE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (11,724) (23,998)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREHER
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM FERBERIKEEER 2
DISCONTINUED OPERATION iR 17 - (2,723)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEER 13 (11,724) (26,721)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FEHME2EBEX) WA
income for the year, net of tax: MERBLIA
Items that may be reclassified AEFNEEERZ
to profit or loss: HE
Exchange difference arising on BMEBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations R ER (19,571) 15,458
Release of translation reserve upon BB A E
disposal of subsidiaries MBHEED - 35,194
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ HFEHMEME (F3%) WA -
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, MERBLA
NET OF TAX (19,571) 50,652
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ FEZ2ME(BEX)/
INCOME FOR THE YEAR LONE (31,295) 23,931
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEmkAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

2019 2018
—ZT-hF —ZT-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
il FERT FHT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR THALEEFERS :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company RDFEEA
Loss from continuing operations RERFECEEB 2 EE (13,949) (24,528)
Loss from discontinued operation REDRIEEEER 2 EE = (2,723)
Loss attributable to owners AAREBA
of the Company FEhEE (13,949) (27,251)
Non-controlling interests FIERERE
Profit from continuing operations PRS- SES i 2,225 530
Profit from discontinued operation REDRIEE S 2 5mF = -
Profit attributable to owners FERERER A
of non-controlling interests FEAL 5 R 2,225 530
(11,724) (26,721)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/) THALTELEEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2EBX),WAHEE :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company AAREEA (33,638) 23,483
Non-controlling interests FERERE 2,343 448
(31,295) 23,931
HK$ cents HK$ cents
LOSS PER SHARE BREE 18 AL Al
From continuing and discontinued HREZFERCKIEELEETR
operations
- Basic and diluted —HARREE (0.35) (0.71)
From continuing operations REFELSEER
- Basic and diluted —EARRES (0.35) (0.64)
From discontinued operation RECKRIEKEER
— Basic and diluted —EAREE N/ATE A (0.07)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 March 2019
RZZE-NF=F=+—A

2019 2018
—ZT-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment properties HEME 19 21,126 22,620
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR KRERE 20 53,295 62,127
Goodwill (SRS 21 8,512 8,512
Interest in an associate /N o 23 3,524 3,767
Deferred tax assets RAEFTEE E 24 5,980 7,410
Prepaid land lease payments B AR E A 27 42,146 46,916
134,583 151,352
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories T8 25 50,309 77,354
Debtors, deposits and other receivables EWERIE - & & E b fE W K18 26 123,580 90,709
Properties for sale under development ZRF\FEME 28 - 138,129
Properties held for sale BIEHEZWE 29 201,524 -
Investments at fair value through BRAFEFAEBEREE
profit or loss 30 187 263
Amount due from a director B — R EEHRIE 31 - 68
Amount due from a related company  FEUREAEE A BB 34 6 62
Bank balances and cash ﬁETTmﬁéE\&fﬁﬁ 35 75,480 50,930
451,086 357,515
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Amount due to immediate FERT B EIEIR A AR08
holding company 33 33,050 22,083
Amount due to a director B —REEHIE 33 58 9
Creditors and accrued charges JEERTE R ERTEH 36 100,521 36,100
Contract liabilities EHEE 32 6,376 3,475
Amounts due to related companies FE{TREEE A R FIE 37 29,738 25,876
Current tax liabilities Eﬂ,ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%% 6,812 -
Borrowings ®TE 38 1,049 3,925
Finance lease payables FENRERE 40 112 -
177,716 91,468
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 273,370 266,047
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 407,953 417,399
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R R

As at 31 March 2019
R-ZF—NF=ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Amounts due to related companies XNz NGIE S 37 - 979
Borrowings BE 38 22,177 975
Bond payable e EH 39 1,000 =
Finance lease payables FENRERE 40 136 =
23,313 1,954
NET ASSETS EERE 384,640 415,445
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IRAS K 18
Share capital % A 41 39,768 39,768
Reserves i 42 311,000 344,562
Equity attributable to owners RAREEAEMLRESR
of the Company 350,768 384,330
Non-controlling interests IR = 33,872 31,115
TOTAL EQUITY R 384,640 415,445

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 191 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

28 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

IR
Wang Jing
CHAIRMAN

oy

ITEE
Wang Xing Qiao
DIRECTOR
BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEEZHRENE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax from continuing HECEEBEE R AIER
operations (2,687) (24,113)
Loss before tax from discontinued ERIEREEBEE ZRTIAIEE
operation - (2,723)
Adjustments for: FEE -
Finance costs 2 I N 4,736 6,905
Decrease in fair value of investment wEMEZ N TFERD
properties - 3,692
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BEMEBETE
equipment 6,612 6,316
Amortisation of prepaid land lease T8 - £ th 0 & SR IE 8
payments 1,691 2,084
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for RER(BERD), BE
doubtful debts (2,852) 978
Allowance for obsolete and PRERBHTE BE
slow-moving inventories 1,717 1,421
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of BATEFABZZEHENTE
investments at fair value through wA/ (1)
profit or loss 76 (28)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz WS - (1,081)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary Rl NN - (3)
Share of profits of an associate JE {5 B 2N ) i A (762) (364)
Interest income B A (18) (26)
Impairment loss on other receivables oAt B MR IB R B BT 18 6,896 3,490
Operating cash flows before movements EZES# B2 ELRETE
in working capital 15,409 (3,452)
Change in inventories FEEE 25,328 (15,968)
Change in debtors, deposits and FEWARTE « 12 & [ B I8 sk 18 &
other receivables &l (36,915) (56,250)
Change in properties for sale under BRAPFEMEZES
development 138,129 (67,354)
Change in properties held for sale BlIEHEZMEE (201,524) -
Change in creditors and accrued charges [ERERIE N EETE A EE) 63,529 80,541
Change in contract liabilities AHBEEES 2,901 3,175
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
mAERTRBR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Cash generated from/(used in) operations B&EAL4 (FiH) 2R & 6,857 (59,308)
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid Ha R AR R BT HIA (795) =
Net cash flows generated from/(used K& FBEL (FFIA)2
in) operating activities REREFE 6,062 (59,308)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHELEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend received from an associate B g A a2 FLE 1,005 300
Interest received 2R A 18 26
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE B B A &) - (23,499)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR = 93,730
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEFEEBEREMBEHRIE
held for trading - 136
Advance from/(repayment to) immediate BEEER AT K,
holding company (BEEEERARNIE) 10,967 (11,261)
Advance from related companies B2k NGIESE N 2,939 1,534
Advance from/(repayment to) a director TEE#K (EEEEHIAE) 117 (231)
Proceeds from deregistration of FLEH T B AR FTERIA
a subsidiary - 3
Purchase of property, plant BEWME - BENRE
and equipment (2,355) (4,150)
Net cash flows generated from KREEHMSREMEFE
investing activities 12,691 56,588
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHEECRERE
ACTIVITIES
New borrowings raised MEEEE 22,213 5,955
Capital contribution from non-controlling Fi& 2 R FEIERARER T &
shareholders of a subsidiary 490 1,650
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (3,851) -
Interest on bank and other ERNRITEAMBERE
borrowings paid (3,837) (5,033)
Convertible bonds interest paid B ESF B - (1,297)
Proceeds from bond issuance BEHFBITATISHRIE 1,000 -
Interest paid on bond issued BETESFZENFE (7) -
Repayment of finance lease payables BEENMEHRE (92) -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
mERTRBR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Net cash flows generated from METEMERSAETFH
financing activities 15,916 1,275
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BERBESZEEYEM/
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OR2 ) F88 34,669 (1,445)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#RE&EKREZEY
of year 50,930 34,442
Net foreign exchange difference fE X ZRFRE (10,119) 17,933
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESRBEEEEY
of year 75,480 50,930
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH PMESRESESEDEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEH KRS 75,480 50,930
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREmBBR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARIRBARE

Share Share Capital ~Translation bonds redemption Contributed Accumulated
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve losses*  Subtotal Total
Bx  Riefr RAREr  EXfE ZitEE it &3t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T Tt T T ThR FiEn
At 1 April 2017 RIE-t%
mA-A 36,507 252,315 327 (21,870) (644,413) 285,344 314,804
Bxchange difference BEENEK
arising on translation EEES
of foreign operations 1] - - - 15,540 - 15,540 15,458
Release of translation ~ (HEMBA AR
reserve upon disposal hERREED
of subsidiaries - - - 35,194 - 35,194 35,194
(Loss)iprofit for the year & (B18) /&7 - - - - 21251 (27,51) (26,721)
Total comprehensive EE2EMA/
income(expense) (Ax)e%
for the year - - - 50,734 (27,251) 23,483 23,931
Deemed partial disposal B AL ENE
of a subsidiary rABER - - 503 - - 503 -
Capital contribution HERAFEER
from non-controlling hztE
shareholders of
a subsidiary - - - - - - 1,650
Issue of shares upon BATARESE
conversion of ESiu)
convertible bonds 3,261 133,104 - - - 75,000 75,000
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\%
ZA=1-H 39,768 385,419 830 28 864 (671,664) 384,330 415,445
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERSREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LINC 2N
Convertible Capital Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Translation bonds redemption Contributed Accumulated controlling
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  surplus* losses*  Subtotal interests Total
R BX
Rx  REE* RARE EiRG R5EG BERE SAR%  ZHEE GF FERER @it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TExr  TEx  TEr  TEnr  TExr  TEr  TEr  TExr  TEr  TEx
At 1 April 2018 R-E2-)\E
HA-A 39,768 385,419 830 28,864 - 577,204 23909 (671,664) 384,330 31115 415,445
Exchange difference BEENEREEY
arising on translation EzE
of foreign operations ‘ - - - (19,689) - - - - (19,689) 118 (19,571)
(Loss)lprofit for the year £ (E1E)/ &H - - - - - - - (139490 (13,949) 205 (1,724)
Total comprehensive EERE(ER)/ I
(expense)/income \85
for the year o - - - (19,689) - - S (13949 (3638 233 (31299)
Deemed partial disposal 3B 4 EHBAR
of a subsidiary gaigs ) ) % } ) } } ) % (7 )
Capital contribution HEATELERE
from non-controlling SE
shareholders of )
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 490 490
At 31 March 2019 HIE-nE
ZA=t-H 39,768 385,419 906 9,175 - 577,204 23909 (685,613 350,768 33872 384,640
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the — * ZERBREBREEVBRAR ZEEHE -

consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate holding company of the
Company is Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, which was
incorporated in Samoa, and the ultimate holding company
of the Company is Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property
Development Limited* (EEEEEE)EHEREBRAF),
which was established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the
design and sale of electronic products, operation and
management of hydroelectric power stations, properties
investment, properties development and securities trading.

* The English name is for identification only.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 April 2018. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years
except as stated below.

—REH
ARARRRERETMAL2ERRLER
DA ERORBEREISABERAA
(T L™ - ARRZEEEZERQA
RERERBRAR - ZRAFTREEEEM
BRI > RRBZREEBERRRIREERSF
(RE)EHERAZEEARAR  ZRRRT
EARKMB(THE DKL - ARAZHE
MMEREE T EZLEMBRERFRZIA
AAERIBHA -

EAMBREIBTES BT ARAR
2R o

ARBETEEHRREZR - EXEMEB
AR ERFTRIHEEFEMR  KEWEL

RANFTR] RAEER] 2 BRI

4 R B

RAEE  AEECKRBEEGHNAE
(IEFBGFMAE ) BMETA T L
EAIBEEMBHREEN(ETEYBREE
1)) ZEREEELELZHBAR-F—
NFOA—AMAZ et FELER - FEY
BRELNBERESUBRSEN(EE
MBmELEN ) BAEGERN(TEAEF
B D RBE - RKAZEHTREETE
B BHRELEN TS ERAKESFEHEK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

76

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

A.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when
control of the products is transferred to the

customers.

HKFRS 15 has been applied retrospectively and
resulted in changes in the presentation of the
consolidated amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements as follows:

2.

BRI RSB 2 BRI
WEER(E)

A.

BERBBH/ELEREISHKIREEF
Bz ]

WEREMNEHEEBRERP R

BEAMBHRELUBISHEEFEN
ER YEBBREEMBRRF 2
BOEASBEIBHNT

31 March 2018 1 April 2017
R-ZE—N\F RZTE—LF
=B=+—8 MmA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Decrease in creditors and accrued FERBRTE R ERT B R R
charges (3,475) (300)
Increase in contract liabilities B EEM 3,475 300

HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments”

Investments held for trading are now classified as
investments at fair value through profits or loss.

HKFRS 9 (2014) has been applied retrospectively
and resulted in changes in the presentation of the
consolidated amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements as follows:

ERBREEANFIR(ZF -
FI&mMIA]
FEBBEZREBMDEAEAYF
Bt ABzZmZHRE -

BRMBREEYNFIR(—F— M
FIEEERRER  LEHNGER

iy
R

BREFLHNEASEZBYN
™

A

31 March 2018 1 April 2017

RZEB-—NF=F RZZT—+tFHEA

=+-—A —Q

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Decrease in investments held for trading #H{EE & 2 % & (263) (380)
Increase in investments at fair value ERAFEHFABZZKRE

through profit or loss 20 263 380
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

C. New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply

BRANFTR] RAEER] 2 BRI
WEER (F)

B 58 M B 18 R 4 Rz 3 5T AR B R]
BERMBREEL

THAREAREGARBRES
CRE DT CLE S LE s
RIS AR A5 - 1 14 oK 2 O R A
EEIR DI - AEEEAER X
SRHERE A RAZERD -

these changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendment to HKFRS 3

Amendment to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

HKFRS 17

Leases'

Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement'

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

Definition of a Business?

Definition of Material®

Insurance Contracts*

ERMBRELENE HE

1657

Eh(BRUBRE MENERZTEE

#ABZEg)-%2 W

BE23%

ERUMBRELAE ARHERNIRE

chivd 5 BR

EENBRELNE REFRABENR

10 REBEE G FEEhEH

LRIE285 215 ZEEHEIF

H -

EHGENE19 BB BREE

B ER] A

BHQIEAE28 REBELARAED

Eipd ] 27 REER

BRMBRELN . BAERBRERAZ

EH T-RFE-T
—tFRBEE
!

ERNBRELNE EBER

3R BT

BERGHEANET EEAZER

REBGHE

£8 2155

EEPBRERAE
175

S
FE
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2¥
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

C. New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

Notes:

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.

2. The amendments were originally intended to
be effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017. The effective date had now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020.

4. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and

leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

C.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16 Leases (CONT'D)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modification, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents lease payments as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocate into
a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating

lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

2.

BRANFTR] RAEER] 2 BRI
WmEER (F)

B 58 M B 18 R 4 Rz 3 5T AR B R]
BERMBRMELR(F)
EBUBHRELEANF165RHEE(H)
EREEENTRRAGE - Lk
& AR AR (HE & T SMMER BR SN ) R
REAMENREBENE - AT
MEEREENTEMFELRE -
HMEABNEREENR(RERRX
MzRENHFE - 2R HER
BER(EPRE)NEREE N KA
NREEBITZEZEMGRMAE - 5
ReRENEME  AEEBAKK
HENK2IRELRERE - R
EMERBYHMEERFEI6RR -
FHHEERBZHENTKOES
AeRFBMD  AEBBARE
REREZD -

HEABRASHRENS  BEY
BREEMEIGHREE LHAEE
B ENEI7TROBEASEHR
o REEERHBABEESE
REERELRMERE -

o BB R R E 16 E
FEHENBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

80

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

C.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16 Leases (CONT'D)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group as lessee has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of approximately HK$16,267,000 as disclosed in
note 45. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value assets or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16.

In addition, the Group currently considers
refundable rental deposits paid of approximately
HK$3,940,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the
right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be included in the carrying amount of right-
of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposit received would be considered as advance
lease payments.

The directors of the Company considered the
default risk of refundable rental deposits paid
is low under the application of HKFRS 9 as the
amounts are refundable or can set off with the
lease payments under operating lease.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONT'D)

C. New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16 Leases (CONT'D)

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from
1 April 2019. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.

Other than that, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties and
investments at fair value through profit or loss which are
carried at their fair values.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group
has existing rights that give it the current ability
to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on

which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(a)

Consolidation (CONT’'D)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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3.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (CONT'D)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company's share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’'s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (CONT'D)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary
is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary were recognised
in other comprehensive income (for example,
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the amount that was
recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised on the same basis as would be required
if the previously held equity interest were disposed

of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.
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3.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or
joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise
or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’'s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(c)

Associates (CONT'D)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss, and its share of the post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share
of those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
that results in a loss of significant influence
represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and
(ii) the Group’'s share of the net assets of that
associate plus any remaining goodwill relating to
that associate and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method
and does not remeasure the retained interest.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(c) Associates (CONT'D)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars, which is the Company's
presentation currency and functional
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(d) Foreign currency translation (CONT'D)

(i) Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements (CONT'D)

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

(iii)  Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;
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3.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT'D)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (CONT'D)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation (CONT'D)

- income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated

at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in the translation reserve.
On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during

the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The estimated annual
rates are as follows:

Hydroelectric power stations and

related infrastructure 2-5%
Computer equipment 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-25%
Leasehold improvement 3%
Motor vehicles 20-25%
Plant and machinery 5-30%

The residual values, useful life and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.
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92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property including property that is
being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property is measured initially at its
cost including all direct costs attributable to the

property.

After initial recognition, the investment property
is stated at its fair value based on valuation by an
external independent valuer. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of the investment
property are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property is stated at
cost less impairment losses until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is stated
at fair value. The difference between the fair value
and the previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment
property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

3.

EREHBE(E)

(e)

(f)

M BERERE(E)

HEWE BERREBEZKRANE
BREEMSRBEFRENEEE
REECRAMNER  YNBEHE

277
s °

RENME

REVERRFRBAE R HER
BEMBAENYE REVE(ERE
THEREIRBEERRERENEA
BHME)MEEAAN(BRZYE
IEFBEEEKRAR)FE -

MIaFERIL - WEWERIEI B
SAEERER 2 B ERQFED
R REMEATEEPELENK

BN EE EEELAHRRERT
FERR o

FHEEZRIABERRRENER
BmZME - ARAREREEED
R REEXMBTRRBRARFE
FIBR e DT EEERREEZHEDN
EZRNBRPER -

HE-—HBEENEZBEXUERS
ZYMFEHEMBRBFRAREE
ZRZR - WNEEE PR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(9) Leases

The Group as lessee
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer
to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(ii) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to
the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of
the lease term, a finance lease is capitalised
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the statement of financial
position as finance lease payable. Lease
payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their
estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3.

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(9)

(h)

Leases (CONT’'D)

The Group as lessor
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer
to the lessees all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

Properties for sale under development

Properties for sale under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease
payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to sale proceeds received after
reporting period less selling expenses, or by
estimates based on prevailing market condition.
On completion, the properties are reclassified to

properties held for sale at the carrying amount.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Costs of properties
include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease

payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to sale proceeds received after the
reporting period less selling expenses, or by

estimates based on prevailing market condition.

China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

3.

EREHBE(E)

(9)

(h)

(i)

HEE)

FEBERHAA

(i) KEHE
WEGEEHRAEZ YR
B KB Ay ER = AE
AZBEHEARIBEZH
E-gelHEmSzHs K
ARBEEESERRNAELZE
TR -

BRETEEWE

BRPSEMEILRKN AR ZIRF
EMERREETER - KABER
AR BN HBEERE TR
A BEAREERARE @AY
EELMZHEMEBENR - A #1F
BNRBEREMEME2HEEMS
HIERHEERYET  HIRERD
AEE c BRAMERTHKE - 1ZE
HESENSEABELEZME -

RSz

FELEZMETIAKRA R AT EH
FEMERZEREETIRR - WEK
AERFEWHERAR - BN HEER
BE-IRKAEA CEAEEERAE
REBMEREZEMBERKA -
AERFEDREBERSMEMFZ
HEMBSHENKEERIETE @ &
WERTORME



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

0)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3.

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

0

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or
sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are
initially recognised at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case
of investments at fair value through profit or
loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of investments at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under
the following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost; and

- Investments at fair value through profit or
loss.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and
other receivables) are classified under this
category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

- the assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets
give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

() Financial assets (CONT'D)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost
(CONT'D)

They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.

(i) Investments at fair value through profit

or loss

Financial assets are classified under this
category if they do not meet the conditions
to be measured at amortised cost and the
conditions of debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income unless
the Group designates an equity investment
that is not held for trading as at fair value
through other comprehensive income on
initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently measured at fair
value with any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss are net of
any interest income and dividend income.
Interest income and dividend income are

recognised in profit or loss.

(m) Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default

occurring as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(m)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses
(CONT’'D)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of that financial
instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”)
for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit
risk on a financial instrument (other than trade
receivables) has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit
losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal
to adjust the loss allowance at the end of the
reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities are
set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Equity instruments are any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with
reference to the customary business practices and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between
the payment by the customer and the transfer of
the promised product or service exceeds one year,
the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over
a product or service to a customer. Depending on
the terms of a contract and the laws that apply
to that contract, a performance obligation can
be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A
performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(s)

(t)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONT'D)

- the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced,;
or

= the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of
the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s right to receive payment has
been established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT'D)

(u) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme
cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(v)

(w)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at the fair
value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

3.

EREFHBE(E)

(v)

(w)

BURR 43 2 B 7l 69 19 3K

AEBEBTARESEEARD M
ZHRBETETREE - ABREEL
IABRAD S8 2 RIBTI R IRA T A&
HARAFE(NBEIFM SR
BIEURE)HE - LESEEI A
BN ZRERREREEZ R
FE DREBEASEHERESES
Z B A il &t Rk 3R T S A R B 15
HZREERER REBHZE
ORIIERY ©

BERE

A ZEREEREREEGE
FEHERKHEBFERERZX
HEZEE) MAKEE ZBERAK
DREAREERAN —&H BE
HZEEEAB LCEBREERT
RERHE - EFEE N EMT R
BEXHZA  HEEEENRE
REMBNERERA RFEER
et EEE BTk

miEEZ -—REMEBZERERE
EREE GEBREARALZBEX
A BARMAERCLL REFTEZR
BERMXZEERE - EXREHL X
RERNARERZ AR KREEE
BEZEERANEFHE BRE
BRERBEZEMNEERI

7 L1t 18 B PR AN I E 2 MR 2E 08
R -

ZE-NEER PEHEFEKEARLIF 103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(x)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(x)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(x)

(y)

Taxation (CONT'D)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds from sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as
an income tax expense. LAT paid is a deductible
expense for PRC enterprise income tax purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT'D)
(2) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related

to the Group.

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a
parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group (reporting

entity) if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(2) Related parties (CONT'D)

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting
entity) if any of the following conditions
applies: (CONT'D)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related
to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(aa)

(ab)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of the Group’s various lines of
business in different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets except goodwill, investment
properties, deferred tax assets, investments,
inventories and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(ab)

Impairment of assets (CONT'D)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or
cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(ac)

(ad)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period or those that
indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected
in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(ae)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired

exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs
when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group constituting the discontinued
operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

(a) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in determining the Group’'s deferred tax for
investment properties, the directors have rebutted
the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
through sale.

(b) Revenue recognition of property sales

The Group develops and sells residential properties.
Revenue is recognised over time when the Group’s
performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the completed property. The
properties have generally no alternative use
for the Group due to contractual restrictions.
However, whether there is an enforceable right to
payment and hence the related contract revenue
is recognised over time, depends on the terms of
each contract and the relevant laws that apply to
that contract. To assess the enforceability of right
to payment, the Group has reviewed the terms
of its contracts, the relevant local laws, the local
regulators’ views and obtained legal advice, when
necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Impairment of debtors, deposits and other
receivables

Impairment of debtors, deposits and other
receivables is made based on an assessment of
the recoverability of debtors, deposits and other
receivables. The assessment of impairment of
debtors, deposits and other receivables involves
the use of estimates and judgments. An estimate
for doubtful debts is made when collection of the
full amount is no longer probable, as supported
by objective evidence using available contemporary
and historical information to evaluate the
exposure. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in the
future is different from the original estimates,
such differences will affect the carrying amount of
debtors, deposits and other receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

(b) Impairment of properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expense. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of constructing and
selling properties of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in economics
and demand of market. The Group will reassess
the estimates by the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the physical
conditions and saleability of inventories at the
end of the reporting period, and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for use in
production. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such finished goods primarily
based on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. As at 31 March 2019, the
carrying amount of inventories is HK$50,309,000
(2018: HK$77,354,000), net of accumulated
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories
of HK$1,717,000 (2018: HK$1,421,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property,
plant and equipment have any indication of
impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations and valuations require the use
of judgment and estimates on future operating
cash flows and discount rates adopted. Where the
actual cash flows are different from the original
estimate, a material change in the amount of
impairment may arise. As at 31 March 2019, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
is HK$53,295,000 (2018: HK$62,127,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$3,044,000
(2018: HK$3,044,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONT'D)

(e)

(f)

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of the investment
properties. In determining the fair values, the
valuer has utilised a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates. The directors have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating units
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2019, the carrying
amount of goodwill is HK$8,512,000 (2018:
HK$8,512,000), net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$42,138,000 (2018: HK$42,138,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 21.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONT'D)

(9) Income taxes

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$216,930,000 (2018: HK$296,818,000)
and no deferred tax asset was recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position in relation to the estimated unused tax
losses of HK$167,185,000 (2018: HK$243,602,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are more or less than expected,
a material recognition or reversal of deferred
tax asset may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which such a
recognition or reversal takes place.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amounts due to immediate holding
company, a director and related companies, borrowings
and bond payable disclosed in notes 33, 37, 38 and 39,
respectively net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to bond payable and borrowings.
The management continuously monitors interest
rate exposure. These borrowings bear interests at
fixed rates.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

Price risk

The Group’'s investments at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles. Therefore,
the Group has minimal exposure to price risk.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank
balances, trade debtors and other receivables and
amount due from a related company included
in the statement of financial position represents
the Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Amount due from a related company is
closely monitored by the directors.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

In order to minimise credit risk, the directors
have delegated a team to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition,
the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt regularly to ensure
that adequate loss allowance for expected credit
losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONT'D)

(d) Credit risk (CONT'D)

The Group'’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC (2018:
USA). The trade debtors located in PRC (2018:
USA) accounted for 76% (2018: 28%) of the
Group's total trade debtors as at 31 March 2019.
The Group also has concentration of credit risk by
customers as 4% (2018: 18%) and 15% (2018:
42%) of the total trade debtors was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. In the opinion of the
directors, all five largest customers are customers
with good reputation and creditability.

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. Especially the following
information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability
to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONT'D)

(d)

Credit risk (CONT'D)

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower;
and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of

borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed
if a debtor is more than 30 days past due in
making a contractual payment unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. A default on a financial
asset is when the counterparty fails to make
contractual payments more than 90 days of when
they fall due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group. The Group normally categorises a loan
or receivable for write off when a debtor fails
to make contractual payments greater than 360
days past due. Where loans or receivables have
been written off, the Group, if practicable and
economical, continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how
the loan loss provision is determined for each of
the categories. In calculating the expected credit
loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates
for each category and adjusts for forward looking
data.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(CONT'D)
(d) Credit risk (CONT'D)

PR REE (&)

(d) FERRGE)

Category Definition Loss provision

5l EE BIERE

Performing Low risk of default and 12 month expected losses
strong capacity to pay

RuF B AR e AR T R BE 7058 +Z{ARTEHEE

Non-performing

Significant increase in credit risk

Lifetime expected losses

R B el = HITEHRE 18
Related
company Director Total
2N =) B%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 31 March 2019 R=-ZE—-hE=A=+—H
Amount due from JiE W A 6 - 6
Provision for loss allowance  [E5i8 % & 45 - - -
Carrying amounts BREE 6 - 6
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=B=+—H
Amounts due from FE W FhE 62 68 130
Provision for loss allowance 518 {4 - - -
Carrying amounts BREE 62 68 130

All of these receivables are considered to have low

risk and under the ‘Performing’ category because

they have a low risk of default and have strong

ability to meet their obligations.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONT'D)

(e)

Liquidity risk

the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash

In the management of the liquidity risk,

and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest

and principal cash flows.

6.

(e)

BEBRER(F)

REE < E

REBRBHESRRMS A% H
EERKERENASEEMESE

EEERRASAEE 2 LERH
RABHKF  UEREMRER

S HREBERY AR THEESES
BEZERBR

TREEAKESRABZIRGBE
WEMFB - BRENKRTIRERA
SEFMRERERNRZZFAMZ
CREEARBARERERHE - T
KHEMERASHRERE -

Repayable on Total
Effective  demand or Between Between undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  within 1year ~ 1-2years  2-5years cash flow amounts

REXSSD RUERBE
At 31 March 2019 W=F-AZA=T-H ERAZE  MEEE  1REzR 1ESEeh REAE RAEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TERL TR TiER
Creditors and accrued charges EMEERESER - 100,521 - - 100,521 100,521
Amount due to immediate holding company BN EESRARE - 33,050 - - 33,050 33,050
Amounts due to related companies EREBARTE 6% 29,197 - - 29,197 29,738
Amount due to a director ENEEHE - 58 - - 58 58
Borrowings B 5.45% - 12% 3,816 2,661 22,620 29,097 23,226
Bond payable EffE5 6.5% 65 65 1,188 1,318 1,000
Finance lease payables EfREnE 3.68% 120 140 - 260 28
167,421 2,866 23,808 194,101 187,841
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONT'D)
(e) Liquidity risk (CONT'D)

6. HMBERER(E)

(e) unibﬁ%ﬂl"“(f )

Repayable on

Total

Effectie  demand or undiscounted Carrying
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=f=1-A interest rate  within 1year ~ 1-2 years cash flow amounts
REXAD REBRRS
BRAZE  RMERE 1-26  REEE EHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL TERL T
Creditors and accrued charges ERREREGER - 36,100 = 36,100 36,100
Amount due to immediate holding company BN EZIZRA "] ] = 22,083 S 22,083 22,083
Amounts due to related companies NN 6% 26,071 990 27,061 26,855
Amount due to a director EREZHR - 9 = 9 9
Borrowings ®e 5.45% 4,138 1,081 5219 4,900
88,401 2,01 90,472 89,947
(f) Categories of financial instruments (f) TRMITENER
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets: SREE
Investments at fair value through BAFEF ABE
profit or loss: &
Mandatorily measured BHIET= 187 263
Financial assets at amortised cost RE AT R 2 S &
(including cash and cash equivalents) CE(BFEERES MRS
£BW) 196,049 140,352
196,236 140,615
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEAARIEz2EBEE 187,841 89,947
187,841 89,947
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONT'D)

(9) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used

to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 1.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:

DFETEE)
(@) AFEERHE:

Fair value measurements using:

NYEHEFRNTER:

Description HE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-9 =R EE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
Recurring fair value measurements at RZE-NE=ZR=t-HZ
31 March 2019: EEMAVEE:
Financial assets at fair value through BOTEHABRL
profit or loss tREE
Listed securities in Hong Kong B FES 2 - - 2
Listed securities outside Hong Kong BRI ETES 185 - - 185
Investment properties RENE
Commercial - PRC EERlE - - 21,126 21,126
Total recurring fair value measurements BEMATESELEE 187 - 21,126 21,313
Fair value measurements using:
NPEGERAUTEAE
Description #5 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-4 bl E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
Recurring fair value measurements at RZE-NE=A=1+-HBZ
31 March 2018: ERHATEE:
Financial assets at fair value through BOTEABRL
profit or loss tHAE
Listed securities in Hong Kong EELmES 2 - - 2
Listed securities outside Hong Kong FEN T ES 261 - - 261
Investment properties RENE
Commercial - PRC HE- - - 22,620 22,620
Total recurring fair value measurements BEMATEFELE 263 - 22,620 22,883

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3
fair value measurements in both years.
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 1. NFEFEE)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b) RBREF="RBAULAFEFEZE
based on level 3: EHE:
Investment
properties
Description =X Level 3 Total
REY
E= #Et
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 April 2018 R=Z2—N\FMA—AH 22,620 22,620
Exchange realignment fE R (1,494) (1,494)
At 31 March 2019 R=ZB-hEFE=ZA=+—H 21,126 21,126
Investment
properties
Description =X Level 3 Total
REME
E=MH it
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—tFMWA—H 206,477 206,477
Total gains or losses recognised in RiEmPER 2 W EE
profit or loss rmrE (3,692) (3,692)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 17) & Bt (MIsE17) (192,681) (192,681)
Exchange realignment i & R R 12,516 12,516
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\EFE=ZA=+—H 22,620 22,620
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT’'D)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the
Group and valuation techniques and inputs
used in fair value measurements at 31 March
2019:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors
for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between
the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications and
recent experience to perform the valuation.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

- price per square meter (using market direct
comparable and taking into account of
location and other individual factors, such

as road, frontage, size of property etc.)
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 1.

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the

Group and valuation techniques and inputs

used in fair value measurements at 31 March

2019: (CONT’'D)

Level 3 fair value measurements

DFETEE)
(0 R-B-AE=A=+-8 &K
EEAZEERRRARATFME
ZHBEERTRBARE  (4)

B=RDFETE

Effect on
fair value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of 2019
Description technique inputs Range inputs Total
BAZBENY “E-RE
H# EER % TABRHAHE HE AYEz¥E st
HK$'000
Ti#En
Completed commercial properties Direct comparison Price per square ~ RMB19,300 to Increase 21,126
method meter RMB24,500
BERERANE BEREE BYAKRER AR#19,3007 &
ZARM24,5007C
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of 2018
Description technique inputs Range inputs Total
BAHBENY —E-N\E
B HERE TBEZEAHE #E ATEZFEZ @it
HK$'000
TiEn
Completed commercial properties Direct comparison  Price per square RMB19,718 to Increase 22,620
method meter RMB27,778
BERRERANE BEEBE BYRER ARE19,71870 00

During the two years, there were no changes in

the valuation techniques used.

ZANRH27,7787C
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8.

REVENUE 8. Il
2019 2018
Continuing operations: HEREER —E-NE —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Design and sale of electronic products ErEMRTMEE 394,365 512,115

Operation and management of hydroelectric 7KE u4iE & & 12

power stations 6,216 5,185
Development and sale of properties MERERIEE 157,429 -
Revenue from contracts with customers REEPAHZ WS 558,010 517,300
Rental income Ha WA 1,276 738
Total revenue FEl g 559,286 518,038
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8. REVENUE (CONT'D) 8. Wz (4#&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: REBEPEH 2 WA
2019
“E-hE
Design and  Operation and
sale of  management  Development
electronic of hydroelectric and sale of
Segments ik products power stations properties Total
BTER KEW S
REARHE BEER RERHE Ehy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER TR TiEn
Geographical markets WETS
USA E3El 328,112 - - 328,112
Canada mnex 30,695 - - 30,695
Europe BN 29,046 - - 29,046
PRC B 3,862 6,216 157,429 167,507
Other countries HER 2,650 - - 2,650
Total &t 394,365 6,216 157,429 558,010
Major products/service FEEGBE
Design and sale of electronic products STEMFHREE 394,365 - - 394,365
Operation and management of hydroelectric KB ELEE
power stations - 6,216 - 6,216
Development and sale of properties NEREREE - - 157,429 157,429
Total @it 394,365 6,216 157,429 558,010
Timing of revenue recognition Yoz R
At a point in time —fER 2 394,365 6,216 157,429 558,010
Over time —B & - - - -
Total b 394,365 6,216 157,429 558,010
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8. REVENUE (CONT'D) Wz (&)
2018
“E-)N\E
Design and ~ Operation and
sale of ~ management  Development
electronic - of hydroelectric and sale of
Segments DA products  power stations properties Total
ETEm K& NERE
RitREE BgER R#E b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THR THER THR
Geographical markets WETS
USA %H 438,672 - - 438,672
Canada JIIEVN 42,594 - - 42,594
Europe Y 29,589 - - 29,589
PRC HE - 5,185 - 5,185
Other countries ER T 1,260 - - 1,260
Total ot 512,115 5,185 - 517,300
Major products/service FEER /K
Design and sale of electronic products ETEMBITREE 512,115 - - 512,115
Operation and management of hydroelectric ~ KEWHEZEE
power stations - 5,185 - 5,185
Total @&t 512,115 5,185 - 517,300
Timing of revenue recognition Yoz TR
At a point in time — (A2 512,115 5,185 - 517,300
Qver time —BEE - - - -
Total @it 512,115 5,185 - 517,300
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8. REVENUE (CONT'D)

Design and sale of electronic products

The Group designs and sells electronic products
(representing consumer electronic audio and video
equipment, karaoke equipment and accessories) to the
customers. Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products and the customer has obtained legal titles to the
products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms
of 0 to 365 days. For new customers, deposits or cash on
delivery may be required. Deposits received are recognised
as a contract liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered to the customers as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Operation and management of hydroelectric power

stations

The Group operates and manages hydroelectric power
stations. The service income is recognised when service
is rendered and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the service.
The services income is normally made with credit terms of
payment on demand.

Development and sale of properties

The Group develops and sells residential properties to the
customers. Sale of a contract is recognised when control
of the property has transferred, being when the customer
obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has present right
to payment and the collection of the consideration is
probable.

W 38 (&)
BFERRHRHE

AEBRRAEFPHEETER(EHE
BEFRERM  RHOKREREM) - RE
miEHEEBR(NERRXNTEF) B
BERBITHNEBAEXERTPEREMRK
EFPCERERNEGEMBER @ BISHER
HHE o

AEFHEE —RERIEIGSREEH -
MEPRAXNEREININERFIARS
MR- BERRIZERAREHNEE

o

EUFEEERIN TEPEER - EHZA
R AEENRE B AENRRBEMR
{E R B ARMT -

AEEEE REIRAES - RISRARER
PR 3 T BB A R KB (T
RARER - RERANEEH—RARS
SHAH o

MERBREE

AEERBEMATPHEEEME - BHH
ERMENEFIRECEB(NEFRFERE
KR ZBEEEREIOREMBRE  MAKE
[ % A MR R IR 2 3R A R R I AR A R BE U ER
RE)BER -
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the

Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for

the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered

by each operating division.

The Group's operating divisions are as follows:

(1

Design and sale of electronic products (representing
consumer electronic audio and video equipment,
karaoke equipment and accessories) ("Electronic
products business”)

Operation and management of hydroelectric power
stations (“Hydroelectric power business”)

Properties investment

Development and sale of properties (“Properties
development”)

Securities trading
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(a) Segment revenue and results

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which mainly

represents sales of goods, and results by reportable

and operating segments is as follows:

9.

SEEH (4
(a) DEURBER¥EE
ey L ECET T PS
w(EEHELEE
™

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BECE-NFZAZT-BLEE

%)&%\L\

Continuing operations
Electronic  Hydroelectric
products power  Properties  Properties Securities
business business investment  development trading Total
w728
5% KEXH NERE EEES #5858 3
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tién Tin Tin Tén TR TR
TURNOVER BEE 394,365 6,216 1,276 157,429 - 559,286
SEGMENT RESULTS HEzE (10,098) 1,855 (1,185) 28,066 (76) 18,562
Interest income HEMA 18
Unallocated expenses RAERY (17,293)
Share of profits of an associate EIERERATER 762
Finance costs HRRE (4,736)
Loss before taxation KHAEE (2,687)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)
(a) Segment revenue and results (CONT'D)

9. 2EER(E

(a)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

BE_Z-\§=A=+-HI%E

SRR RE(E)

Continuing operations

REEELH
Electronic - Hydroelectric

products power  Properties  Properties  Securities Discontinued
business ~ business  investment  development trading  Subtotal  operation Total

EfEm B
% KEXE WERE  NEEE E5EE Pt BEER &t
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr ThR Tin Tién Thr ThR Tién T
TURNOVER 248 512,115 5,185 738 - - 518,038 - 518,038
SEGMENT RESULTS PR 1,129) 630 (2471 (388) 19 (3939 388 (174
Interest income V0N 25 1 26
Unallocated expenses FARRY (13,658) - (13,65)
Share of profits of an associate  JEEES AT 364 - 364
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary = EMEA AR - 3 3
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBA T - 1,081 1,081
Finance costs BRI (6,905) - (6,905)
Loss before taxation EHRAER (24113) 273 (26,836)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 9. DEEH(E
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) REEERAEE
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by BRAEETRREEEE D &
reportable and operating segments is as follows: EXBESTHOT :

As at 31 March 2019
RIE-NE=A=1-A

Continuing operations

RELERH
Electronic  Hydroelectric
products power  Properties  Properties Securities
business business investment  development trading Total
E7Em
£% KEXH NERE EES #5EE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn FEn TiEn TEn TEn

ASSETS AE

Segment assets HRAE 116,212 41,353 82,295 334,300 187 574,347
Unallocated corporate assets AOELRTEE 11,322
Consolidated total assets AR 585,669
LIABILITIES 8k

Segment liabilities HHREE 51,519 5,957 8,627 78,597 - 144,700
Unallocated corporate liabilities APELTEE 56,329
Consolidated total liabilities AHERE 201,029
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BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (CONT'D)

9.

(b)

As at 31 March 2018
R=F-\E=A=1-H

TREERAEGE)

Continuing operations

REEELH
Electronic - Hydroelectric
products power  Properties  Properties  Securities Discontinued
business ~ business  investment  development trading  Subtotal  operation Total
EFER BRI
£% KEEB VERE  NEEE E5EE it BERE @it
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TAL Thn Thn TAL TAL Thn Thn
ASSETS 3
Segment assets PREE 139,016 48,740 106,138 138,224 263 432,381 - 432,381
Unallocated corporate assets APBERAREE 76,486
Consolidated total assets AitEEE 508,867
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities PEEE 35,637 6,299 2,286 988 - 510 - 50
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEARIEE 48212
Consolidated total liabilities AitieRE 93,422

Unallocated corporate assets mainly represent
interest in an associate, deferred tax assets and
assets held by head office and inactive subsidiaries.

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly represent
amount due to immediate holding company,
borrowings, bond payable and liabilities incurred
by head office and inactive subsidiaries.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(c)

Other segment information

(© HitpE&EH

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BECB-NEZA=t-HLEE

Continuing operations

Electronic Hydroelectric
products power  Properties  Properties  Securities
business business investment development trading Total
ETER
5% kEEE NERE DEEE EREE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tir TR T Tir TR TER
Amounts included in the measurement  MADEZEFPBAENEY
of segment results or segment assets: HE:
Additions of property, plant and equipment BENE - BEREE 2,592 - 103 - - 2,695
Bad debts written off L 123 - - - - 123
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts ~ RE&&EED 2,852 - - - - 2,852
Impairment loss on other receivables AN EREER 6,896 - - - - 6,896
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BEREENE
equipment 2,025 2,842 406 - - 5,273
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving ~ BRERE#GFEEE
inventories 1,717 - - - - 1,717
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BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 9. DEER(Z
(c)  Other segment information (CONT'D) () HtaEERGE)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-E-\§ZA=1-BILEE

Continuing operations

BEEEZEH
Electronic Hydroelectric
products power  Properties  Properties  Securities Discontinued
business business  investment  development trading Subtotal  operation Total
EFEm BAILL

2% KERE  MERE UEFE E5EE Mt BERE a5t
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TEn TR TEn TR FEn TR

Amounts included in the AP EEEAPEEE
measurement of seqment B HA -
results or segment assets:

Additions of property, plant  E%E9% - BEREE

and equipment 2,008 - 2,086 - - 4,094 - 4,094
Decrease in fair value of — RENEZAFERD

investment properties - - - - - - 3,692 3,692
Bad debts witten off S 24,989 - - - - 24,989 - 24,989
Allowance for doubtful debts RE&{E 978 - - - - 978 - 978
Impairment loss on other ~ EtERFERESE

receivables 3,490 - - - - 3,490 - 3,490
Depreciation of property, 9% - BERZETE

plant and equipment 1,716 2,876 398 - - 4,990 - 4,990
Alowance for obsolete and ~ FEREHEEEE

slow-moving inventories 142 - - - - 1421 - 1421
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BE_FT-NF=A=1—HIFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 9. DEER(E)
(c)  Other segment information (CONT'D) () HtpaEERE)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief Eﬁﬁmiﬁ%Igi‘“%ﬁi%%ﬁﬂifﬂ
operating decision maker but not included in the ADHBEGESHNPBEETE 2R
measurement of segment results or segment assets: R
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest in an associate RN o 3,524 3,767
Share of profits of an associate e B D B A 762 364
Finance costs B SR AR (4,736) (6,905)
(d) Geographical segments (d) HESE
The Group's operations are located in USA, REBZEEESHRER - &
Canada, Europe, Hong Kong (place of domicile), KB BE(EEHE) - A EH
PRC and other countries. FEMBEZR o
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BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(d) Geographical segments (CONT'D)

The Group's revenue from external customers (based
on location of customers) and information about
its non-current assets by geographical location of

the assets are detailed below:

9.

TEER(E)
(d) HEFEE)

AEBERBIBEL 2WE(REP
FrEE) R BREFERBEEEN
(REEMEMR) ZFHBWT ¢

Revenue from external customers

REIMBEF 2 W@
2019 2018
—2-nF e i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Continuing operations: FECEETR
USA EH 328,112 438,672
Canada mEx 30,695 42,594
Europe B 29,046 29,589
PRC MR 168,783 5,923
Other countries Hfh B 5% 2,650 1,260
559,286 518,038
Non-current assets (Note)
FREBEE (MFE)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Continuing operations: FREREER

USA EH 12,591 12,024
Hong Kong EB 4,435 6,017
PRC ellE 111,577 125,901
128,603 143,942

Note: Non-current assets excluded def
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BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 9. DEEHR(E)
(e) Information about major customers (e) EEEFER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding EAFEGAEBEBYZEI0%MU L
years contributing over 10% of the total revenue ZEFPW=HINMAT
of the Group are as follows:
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —T-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 5% FET FHET
Customer A ZEA 76,264 161,995
N/A
Customer B XFB (i) T iE 68,991
N/A
Customer C BPC (i) TiE A 53,610
Note: (i) The corresponding revenue did not () HERSMHAEBRE
contribute over 10% of the total revenue BFE 2B EE
of the Group for the relevant year. 10% °
10. OTHER INCOME 10. HA
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income comprise: HEaWA B
Interest income F B U A 18 26
Others Efh 40 46
58 72
Representing: 5
- Continuing operations —RBEEEEY 58 72
- Discontinued operation (note 17) — BRI EEBE17) - -
58 72

ZE-NEER PEHEFEKEARLIF 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

11.

12.

OTHER GAIN AND LOSS Hitol 22 R & 18
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Other gain/(loss) comprise: Hplzs, (BE)BRIE
Exchange gain, net b XU - F5E 25 7,064
Reversal of allowance/(allowance) for RERRB R (BE)
doubtful debts 2,852 (978)
Bad debts written off AR M (123) (24,989)
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of ATV EFTABREZEE
investments at fair value through ZAFEECED)
profit or loss (76) 28
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary NI A € - 3
2,678 (18,872)
Representing: 5
- Continuing operations —RBEREEY 2,678 (18,875)
— Discontinued operation (note 17) — BRI EER (ME17) - 3
2,678 (18,872)
FINANCE COSTS Bt %5 B AN
2019 2018
“E-REF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Interest expenses on: FIERX
- borrowings — BB 4,446 5,033
— convertible bonds — A RKRES - 4,123
- note payable —EREE 259 402
— bond payable —ENEH 22 -
— finance leases charges —MEHEME 9 -
Less: Amount capitalised to investment W TR B
properties under construction &AL FRIE - (2,653)
4,736 6,905
Representing: 5
- Continuing operations —RBEREEY 4,736 6,905
— Discontinued operation (note 17) — BRI R EB(HEE17) - -
4,736 6,905
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13.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FEBE
The Group’s loss for the year is arrived at after charging/ AEBFEBEZENR (GTA):
(crediting):
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operations: FESEER
Cost of inventories sold HEFE/KAKA 428,813 386,007
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):8 TR A (BEEEHHE):
Wages and salaries TERS= 34,864 32,214
Pension scheme contributions RRET B R
— Defined contribution scheme — EFEHETE 894 592
35,758 32,806
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ELR B & 2,633 2,427
Exchange gain, net R G (25) (7,064)
Depreciation of items of property, plant and %% « BE KEREITE
equipment 6,612 6,316
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving PRE N BHTFE 2 BE(GT A
inventories (included in cost of sales) HERA) 1,717 1,421
Bad debts written off 22 AR 1 8 123 24,989
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments &1 + 78 & 75 1B # 45 1,691 2,084
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for RER(BERED) B
doubtful debts (2,852) 978
Impairment loss on other receivables Hh fEUGRIE 2 R B E 18 6,896 3,490
Minimum lease payments under operating MUATHEEKEHEN T 2&
lease in respect of EHEE
- Land and buildings —tHREF 11,991 11,729
Discontinued operation: BRIEEEEK .
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB AW E - (1,081)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary M B AR E - (3)
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors and chief executive

14. EERINVESTFMA LIS

(a) EERFETHRAE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E-NFZA=+-BLEE

Salaries and Retirement
other short benefits
term employee  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonus contributions  emoluments
HEREM RINET
He REHESET fLi-paan A HHas
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz THER TR THR THET THER
Executive directors: HITES .
Wang ling I& - 1,200 - - 1,200
Wang Xing Qiao IE% - 2,760 - - 2,760
Zhao Shuang ik - - - - -
Independent non- BUkHTES:
executive directors:
Wang Ping ¥ - 300 - - 300
Song Wenke R - 17 - - 17
Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny — EX# (i - 300 - - 300
Zeng Guanwei LHE (ii) - - - - -
- 4,677 - - 4,677

146 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EERTNVBSEHFMMA LIS
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D) (#%&)

(a) Directors and chief executive (CONT’D) (a) BERTETHAE(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-\F=A=t-HIL%E

Salaries and
other short Retirement
term employee  Discretionary benefits scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonus  contributions emoluments
HEREM RIET
He RHESET fLl-paay HE S HHasE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i THER THT THR THET THR
Executive directors: HTES:
Wang ling I& - 1,133 - - 1,133
Wang Xing Qiao IE3 - 960 - - 960
Zhao Shuang ik - - - - -
Independent non- BUkNTES:
executive directors:
Wang Ping ¥ - 300 - - 300
Song Wenke RXE - 118 - - 118
Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny Ly (i) - 300 - - 300
- 2,811 - - 2,811

Notes:

(i) Resigned on 30 April 2019

(i) Appointed on 30 April 2019

B&E

(i) R-ZE-NAFHA=+RHEE

(ii) RZE-NFHUA=+REZE
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)

(a)

(b)

Directors and chief executive (CONT'D)

No performance related incentive payments and
emoluments in respect of director’s other services
in common with the management of the Company
or its subsidiaries undertaking were paid to the
directors of the Company for both years.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group. The emoluments of the independent
non-executive directors shown above were mainly

for their services as directors of the Company.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors

waived any emoluments in both years.

Five highest paid individual emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included one (2018: one) director, details of whose
remuneration are set out above. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2018: four) highest paid
employees are as follows:

(a)

(b)

14. EERINVESTFMA LIS
(&)

EERIETBRAR(AE)

BERZMEFERERARAK
HMBAREHZEMESTRER
ARREEEMERER K
RBNE

LRFINATESTFHEZRES
EEARARRRAEEEBIRHER
BHBE - LB IFRITE
EFMIERBREFER/ANRAIES
PRt IRIS OB & -

RMEFERN  BEETBITHRAER
SEENEMS

EEBEHFMAL

AEBALSSHIALBE 4
(Z2-NF:—2)EF AHR
SHE 2 HBERECRE - X8
mAE(ZF—\E R BB
BEZMamT

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

Salaries and other short term HFehEMRHESER
employee benefits 6,824 8,819

Retirement benefits scheme ROREFIFT B3R

contributions - -
6,824 8,819
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BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)

(b) Five highest paid individual emoluments
(CONT'D)

Emoluments of these employees were within the
following bands:

14. EENANVESHFMA LTS
(#&)
(b) EEBBHFHAL(E)

WEREMS 2 SHBEWT ¢

Number of employees

EEAH
2019 2018
—g-nE e i
Emolument band: HeHE
Nil = HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,0008 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 021,500,000/ 70 2 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 022,000,000 70 - 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7C%2,500,000/% 7T 2 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7C%£4,000,000/% 7T - 1
4 4
15. TAXATION 15. B\
The charge comprises: X BE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current year NFE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") FREZEMSH(TEEMST]) 6,823 -
LAT THIEER 784 -
Deferred taxation RIERTE 1,430 (115)
9,037 (115)
Representing: ¥
- Continuing operations —RBEREEY 9,037 (115)
- Discontinued operation (note 17) — BRI EBEE17) - -
9,037 (115)
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BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HILFE

15.

TAXATION (CONT'D)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Group has no assessable profit
for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2018: 25%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value (2018: not
applicable).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

15.

16.

TAXATION (CONT'D)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

15. BIE(E)

and other comprehensive income as follows:

RNEEFRIA HERE B
Z BRI ATEEERAOT ¢

s R E MR SR

2019 2018
—E-NF s — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss from continuing operations before KREBELEER L
taxation PR 7 Al &5 18 (2,687) (24,113)
Loss from discontinued operations RECRIEEEEF 2
before taxation W 75 B S 18 5 (2,723)
Loss before taxation bR B A E 1B (2,687) (26,836)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate of IZZARMFE16.5%
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZZ—N\F : 165%) &
ZTIE (443) (4,428)
Tax effect of share of results of an BB E N EEIHETE
associate (126) (64)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR BR 2 FHEFE
taxation purposes 7,228 4,846
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BERBRE 2 RGZE
taxation purposes (151) (2,169)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries A Efth BIEME R & & 2 Hi B
operating in other jurisdictions RATRABEZ 2 2,740 2,378
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBBE BT E 1,311 1,167
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR AR ER 2 FIEEE
recognised (934) (1,845)
LAT T B ER (784) -
EIT effect of LAT EMSRE T HIZER 28 196 -
Taxation for the year RF EHIA 9,037 (115)
DIVIDENDS 16. KRE
The directors of the Company do not recommend the HE_Z-NEFR_ZE-NEF=A=+—H
payment of any dividend for each of the years ended 31 IEEFE  ARAIEZWTEZEDREMAR
March 2019 and 2018. B
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17. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 17.

The Group’'s discontinued operation for the year ended
31 March 2018 represented the sales and installation
of elevators and part of properties investment business
operated by Tong Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“TSY Group”).

On 26 September 2017, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of the entire equity
interest in TSY Group. The disposal was completed on 26
September 2017, the date on which the control of TSY
Group was passed to the acquirer. The sales, results, and
cash flows of TSY Group attributable to the Group prior
to the date of disposal were as follows:

The loss for the year from the discontinued operation is
analysed as follows:

BRIEREEK
AEEBE_T—N\F=ZA=+—HLEFE
ZERIEREEEIERBRIERER AR K
EWBAR([AERRER|)ELNERH
ERTZEURIBOMEREETS -

RZE—LFAA-+XE  AEEFZE
BipE WHEERAREEEN2HR
e ZHEFER _T—tFNLA-TRE
T ERRBESENZHIREEERE
A-REERHA  AREEERAEEEE
ZHE  EENRSREWT :

FARBERIEREEBZEBOTWT ¢

2019 2018

—EBE-hEF —T-N\F

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

Loss from discontinued operation BRIFEEEK 2 EIE - (2,723)
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17. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONT'D) 17. BRIEKEEK (&)

The results of the discontinued operation for the period BE-Z—+tFMA—RHE_ZT—tFhAZ
from 1 April 2017 to 26 September 2017, which have TRNBLEE  EMAGEBRZBERIEL

been included in consolidated profit or loss, are as EEBIERNAT

follows:

Period from
1 April 2017 to
26 September
2017
B-ZE—tHF
MA—H
EZT—tHF
hAZ=+xA
IEHARS
HK$'000
FHExT
Revenue e -
Cost of goods sold HEE@AAE -
Gross profit EF| -
Other income RN 1
Decrease in fair value of investment properties "EWMEZ AFERD (3,692)
Administrative expenses TEAX (116)
Other gain and loss HoAth Wz K 518 3
Finance costs U IO N -
Loss before tax for the period HE BB A& (3,804)
Income tax expense FTS R -
Loss for the period Hifd e (3,804)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AT KR 1,081
Loss from discontinued operation ERIEREEB  EE (2,723)
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the disposed TSY BEZT/\$=A=1+—HLFE B
Group paid approximately HK$115,000 in respect ERBEREELEEBHZ4115,0007%

of operating activities, paid approximately HK$Nil in
respect of investing activities and paid approximately
HK$2,653,000 in respect of financing activities.

No tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of the
discontinued operation.

T BRI NOEE AR E RS
S H#92,653,0008 7T °

HE BRI 2 5 2 Wan I A A (A
HEAHER
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17. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONT'D)

17. CRIEREEK (&)

2018
—E-N\%
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets at the date of disposal were as TEBHNEEFAENDT
follows:
Investment properties REME 192,681
Bank balances and cash RITHBREIE 4
Trade and note receivables B 5 UGB R R E R 202,769
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B RIE -~ ke KA MBI 54,889
Trade and note payables B O RENRIBRENER (31,542)
Other payables and accruals HtENRIBERETER (191,339)
Current tax liabilities BNHATRIE & (& (11,689)
Borrowings BE (105,588)
Net assets of subsidiaries MEARzEEFE 110,185
Release of foreign currency translation reserve SMNEXZ 5 EEEE L 35,194
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME A 1,081
146,460
Total consideration: HRAE
— Satisfied by cash — R e 93,734
— Deferred consideration included in other —IRERB AR B E B A M BRI
receivable in current assets 52,726
146,460
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal: HEEEANBEESRAFE
Cash consideration received BB RE 93,734
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEReNBEESEYD (4)
93,730
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18. LOSS PER SHARE 18.

(a) From continuing and discontinued operations

BREE
(a) HEGEEBRORILEEEY

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on
the following data: HK$'000 HK$'000
BRERRESEEDRIBEATBURGHE FHET FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the RETEBRERNREEEIE 2K
Company for the purpose of basic NAEB ARGEE
and diluted loss per share (13,949) (27,251)

Number of shares

Bigvig 4=
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F

Weighted average number of shares A&zt EFAREAR K #EEIE 2 N

for the purpose of basic and diluted #FHR% % EH
loss per share

3,976,797,561 3,823,134,667

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the calculation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds and share option as
it would result in a decrease in the loss per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the calculation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding share option as it would result in a
decrease in the loss per share.

BE_ZT-N\FZA=+—BLLFE &
tﬁx}%%%%@ﬁﬁiﬂﬂ?*“ﬁﬁ$ATrﬂiﬁ§
mABEERRTERBRE  BRLATTR
RERERERRD -

BHE_T-NF=ZA=+T—"BLFE &
tﬁx}%éﬁiﬂéﬁﬁiﬂﬂ?*“ﬁﬁ$ATr‘ﬁiﬁ
EERE - BA LT ASERESREER

o
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18. LOSS PER SHARE (CONT'D)

(b) From continuing operations

18. SREE(E)

(b) FEEEXRK

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on
the following data: HK$'000 HK$'000
BRERRESERDREBEATBURHE THT FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the REFEERERNREEEE 2
Company for the purpose of basic RKARHEE AELER
and diluted loss per share (13,949) (24,528)

Number of shares

B EA
2019 2018
—E-NF —F)N\F

Weighted average number of shares Azt EFAREAR K #EEIE 2 N

for the purpose of basic and diluted #FH% % & H

loss per share

3,976,797,561 3,823,134,667

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the calculation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds and share option as
it would result in a decrease in the loss per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the calculation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding share option as it would result in a
decrease in the loss per share.
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BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

18. LOSS PER SHARE (CONT'D) 18. BREE(E)
(c) From discontinued operation (c) BARIEEEER
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E-N\F
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on
the following data: HK$'000 HK$'000
BREAREEEHEERBEATERTHE FET FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the Rt EERERREEER
Company for the purpose of basic ZABRIRA AL IR N/A
and diluted loss per share TEA (2,723)

Number of shares

BHEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
Weighted average number of shares R EERERNEEEE
for the purpose of basic and diluted Z IR 8L N/A
loss per share REHA 3,823,134,667
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the calculation HEZZ-\F=ZA=+—HLEFE &
of diluted loss per share does not assume the T AR 5 5 48 R 0 I (R AR B AR A ) 1) R 88
exercise of the conversion of the Company’s WA BRIREF RATERERE - AR TR
outstanding convertible bonds and share option as S ESFREERD

it would result in a decrease in the loss per share.
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REYZE
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
ERMRENE HERREME #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTAERT FAER FAERT
FAIR VALUE: NEE:
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMB—H 37,931 168,546 206,477
Decrease in fair value NEERD - (3,692) (3,692)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 17) HEMER T (KzF17) (17,634) (175,047) (192,681)
Exchange realignment [ R = 2,323 10,193 12,516
At 31 March 2018 and R-_ZE—\F=B=+—H
1 April 2018 M=FE-NFMNA—H 22,620 - 22,620
Exchange realignment [E R (1,494) - (1,494)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=+—H 21,126 - 21,126

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the investment properties
are situated in Zhangian, Pingshan District, Benxi City,
Liaoning Province, the PRC.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties had
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by
FESFREMWELIMWEENGEER AR, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.
The valuations were arrived at by reference to recent
market prices for similar properties in similar locations
and conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged
the investment properties of HK$21,126,000 (2018:
HK$Nil) to secure the borrowings granted to the Group
(note 38).
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. V¥ - BERRE
Hydroelectric
power
stations Furniture,
Motor  Leasehold  and related Computer ~fixtures and Plant and
vehicles improvement infrastructure  equipment  equipment  machinery Total
g8 KEUR f
RE NEEE RBERRE 0 EMRB  RERRE  ERRER 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tién TR Tén Tin TR Tén
CosT: RAE:
At 1 April 2017 RIE-tEMmA-H 179 8,505 39,379 2,196 5,022 31,273 86,554
Additions WRE - 2,044 - 10 789 1,307 4,150
Exchange realignment ExfE 19 664 5,050 - - 1870 7,603
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RIE-NEZA=1-HEk
“5-\§EA-H 198 11,213 44,429 2,206 5811 34,450 98,307
Additions RE - - - - 340 2,355 2,695
Exchange realignment Exfz (13) (588) (3,449) - - (1,20) (5,330)
At 31 March 2019 RIE-NE=A=1-H 185 10,625 40,980 2,206 6,151 35,525 95,672
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZEHERAE
IMPAIRMENT:
At 1 April 2017 RIF-tEEA-H 23 177 4,126 2183 3,034 19,863 29,406
Provided during the year TEERR 25 1,02 2,145 10 581 2353 6,316
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss)  HEER/(BESEEE) - - 606 - - (606) -
Exchange realignment Exfg 4 28 319 - - 107 458
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R-E-\E=A=+-BkK
—5-\fEA-H 52 1,407 7,19 2193 3,615 U7 36,180
Provided during the year TFEHME U 1,199 213 6 855 2,39 6,612
Exchange realignment Exgz 3) (31) (286) - - (95) (415)
At 31 March 2019 RZF-NE=R=1-H IE! 2575 9,042 2,199 4470 24,018 037
CARRYING AMOUNT: LR
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NEZA=+-H 112 8,050 31,938 7 1,681 11,507 53,295
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NEZA=+-H 146 9,806 37,233 13 2,19 12,733 62,127

At 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of furniture,
fixtures and equipment held by the Group under finance

leases amounted to HK$340,000 (2018: HK$Nil).

RZBE-NEF=R=+—H AEEHEZ
BEMEBETEL  KERRBEZEBED

5340,0008L(ZZE— N\F : TBFL) °
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21.

GOODWILL 21. EHE
HK$'000
FET
COST RAE
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 RZZB—tFMWMA—H  ZZ—-N\F
and 31 March 2019 =RA=t+—-BRk=-ZE—hAE=A=+—H 50,650
IMPAIRMENT bERIEL
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 R-ZT—+HEWA—H —ZT—N\F
and 31 March 2019 =A=t-Brk=ZZE-AE=RA=+—H 42,138
CARRYING VALUE BRTEI{E
At 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 RZE-AF=A=+—HEZZE—-/\F=A=+—H 8,512

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash-generating unit (“CGU") that
is expected to benefit from that business combination.

EWER  CEAHESNEERIEER
MR ZEXAHPEaNREENEM
(ReELEML] BERESESALLD

The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as N
follows:
Electronic products
business Total
BYEREH @t
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-RF -—T-\& —B-hAFE -—T-N\4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR FHBT THET
Goodwill SRS 8,512 8,512 8,512 8,512
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21.

GOODWILL (CONT'D)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Electronic products business CGU

The amount of goodwill is allocated to the CGU within
the Electronic products business segment. Goodwill is
tested for impairment by the management by estimating
the recoverable amount of these CGU based on value in

use calculations.

The recoverable amount has been determined on the basis
of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to revenue and
direct costs during the budgeted period. The management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific. Changes in revenue and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budget for the next five years
approved by the management and cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using 0% (2018: 0%)
growth rate. The rate used to discount the forecast cash
flows is approximately 10% (2018: 10%). For the year
ended 31 March 2019, no impairment loss of goodwill is
recognised as a result.

21.

BE(E)

B8 2R ER
EFEREBRRESEHLEN
BESHEIETEFEREBOBAZRE
EEEN - mBRENRTAEEERER
ERABEFEEAGEZZEREENEML
A E R mET

AlEERNREREEFEEEE - £5
BEAEEMEHEIERRABBANIERE -
BERURBEHARSMNEZKA 2B
BE) o  BEEERMBRBANRMGFRERE
ZA R RRTISREHERRREEN RS
BRRNE - MR REERA 2 EBIRE
BEBHI R ETSEMARKBEEEL AT

RAFE  AEBREBEEEEZBERKA
FLYMGBEMEEZ RS RETENERH
BEFE URIZ0% (ZZE—N\F :0%)
EREMEIFEZEEMNE - ARG

TBRAREREZHERELNF10% (ZF—N
F:10%) Hit BHEZT-—NAF=A=
T—RILFE - TEBRREHBREEBRS -

.
=4
Ean
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22. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 22. FEHNBAT
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARG EEMBARIFROT :
follows:

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary

Place of incorporation share capital/

or registration/ registered Percentage of equity interests
Company name operations capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BE1T
S S, LBERRA APREERE
A EXE HAMEREE BEEOL TEEK
2019 2018
“g-nF  ZEINF
Cosmo Communications USA/Canada US$1,571,000 93.80% 93.80% Trading of electronic
Corporation appliances and
investment holding
ELVQIIEIN 1,571,000% 7T ETEREHRRELR
Harvest Way Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
ABEARES (E RAER
Master Light Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
ik 2R REER
Starlight Electronics USA Inc. USA Us$10,000 100% 100% Trading in electronic
products
£R 10,000% 7T BETEMES
Starlight Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Securities trading and
trading in electronic
products
Ak 2B ESBERETERES
Starlite Consumer Electronics USA Us$20 100% 100% Trading in electronic
(USA) Inc. products
*H 0% EfEmES
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22. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 22. EEWBEAT (&)

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary

Place of incorporation share capital/

or registration/ registered Percentage of equity interests

Company name operations capital  attributable to the Company Principal activities
ERITEBERR
Mk, X/ AMERE ADAEMERAE
RAREW XY (i1 BEAD TEXH
2019 2018
“g-pE T)NF
The Singing Machine Company, ~ USA US$380,706 51.12% 51.26% Trading in consumer
Inc. ("SMC")** karaoke audio
equipment and
electronic products
*H 380,7065 7 HETHLOKEERER
ETERES
KEEHFEERRAR PRC* RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Properties investment
R ARH nERE
20,000,0007T
KETMHERNEEERLE PRC* RMB500,000 100% 100% Operation and
management of a
hydroelectric power
station
i ARE KBUBLER
500,0007C
KERRERENRKNEE PRC* RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Operation and
ARATF management of a
hydroelectric power
station
R N KBUELER
50,000,000t
KEREEHEREERAR PRC* RMB20,050,000 100% 100% Properties development
e N ELE
20,050,0007c
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22.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

* These subsidiaries were PRC wholly foreign owned

enterprises.

** The common stock of SMC is quoted on the Over-the-
Counter Bulletin Board in the USA.

# Acquired by the Group on 25 September 2017.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results of the year or constitute a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Other than Harvest Way Holdings Limited and Seasonal
Bliss Limited which are held directly by the Company, all
other subsidiaries are held indirectly by the Company.
None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The table below provides details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights

Place of incorporation and

Name of subsidiary principal place of business interests

FERERRENAERER

22.

held by non-controlling

TEWMBLR(E)

ZEMBRAABTEINIEBEDRE -

L SMCZ EBRAEXRISINZ HHERR

# AEER_T—tFENAA_THRAWE -

EERBLERMAINARAIME AR IEAF
BZRBEREENTE  ABNAEEEE
FEXERD  c EERRUREHREGHER
AZFE BLEHBRITE -

FrHarvest Way Holdings Limited &
Seasonal Bliss Limited BN AR EEEFE
S FTBEEMMB AR AR AREER
B RAFEXAFEATAERE - FEN
BRARBHEMAEEZEERER -

TREJAEEHEEEAFERERIFEE
B R B ZFF1E

Profit allocated to non- Accumulated

controlling interests non-controlling interests

WERARER MR ERTEL SN SEEL g AREFERERNRT R FERER
As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 31 March
R=B=1+-H R=B=1+-H R=B=1+-H
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-nE OZE-\F ZE-AE R\ ZE-hE ZE-NE
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL FHET TERL FHET
SMC (Note a) USA
SMC (Ff3Ea) e 48.88% 48.74% 2,408 580 32,408 29,675

Note a: The subsidiaries of SMC are all wholly-owned during both
years.
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22. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 22.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before elimination

of intragroup transactions.

TENBLR(E)

T XHIIA R B RS EA SRR SN E A
Az BAREE o TXRIINIHER
BIEHHRBHIL D LA -

SMC and its subsidiaries SMCREME AR 2019 2018
=F-NEF —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Non-current assets IERBEE 10,723 11,042
Current assets MBEE 84,384 87,775
Current liabilities mEAE (28,669) (35,977)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (136) (1,954)
Equity HEam 66,302 60,886
Revenue Has 362,567 474,303
Other income and expenses Ea i R X (2,012) (2,379)
Profit and total comprehensive ANE 0 ) R 2 W e AR EE
income for the year 4,926 1,189
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating RETEHHE RN
activities Gt i) 7 48 1,462 (5,538)
Net cash outflow from investing activities BEEHH R FE (2,252) (2,008)
Net cash outflow from financing activities B & A B &R HIF5E (3,909) (4,088)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  H& MESFEWR D FE8 (4,699) (11,634)
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23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

23. REE QTR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Cost of investments in an associate, REFENR 2 IREKA -

unlisted JELE™ 6,510 6,510

Share of post-acquisition results, MR EE R ZEA - MBREW
net of dividend received iEdsH 765 1,008
Impairment loss BB 1B (3,751) (3,751)
3,524 3,767
As at 31 March 2019, the Group carried out review RZZE—NEZA=Z+—H8  AEEH R
of the recoverable amount of interest in an associate. ENBZEDA WO REEITES - A/ gD
The recoverable amount has been determined based on THENIER - E-NAF=ZA=1+—Hn
the share of net asset value of the associate as at 31 ERREEFEETETE - LBHRERH -

March 2019. The impairment test did not result in the

recognition of an impairment loss (2018: HK$Nil).

WREEARESE(ZZ—N\F: T8x) -

Details of the Group’s associate are as follows: REEE RN ZFHBET -
Nominal
Form of Place of value of
business registration/ registered Attributable equity Principal
Name of associate structure operations capital interest to the Group  activities
BeENRER EBEBEL A EEmE SMEAEE AEBEERAER TEXH
2019 2018
“g-nEF  —TN\F
Interforce Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong HK$500,000 30.00% 30.00% Trading of
company electronic
products
EABRAA BEREEAR N 500,000/ 7T EfERES
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23.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONT'D) 23. REE DT 2R (E)

The associate is indirectly held by the Company through BEARRARRBEREZENB A RIMEE
its wholly-owned subsidiary. BE -
Included in the cost of investments in an associate is B &R R IR E AR ISR F U E
goodwill of HK$Nil (2018: HK$Nil) arising on acquisition BRNRIFMEEZEEBEEBL(ZT—\F :
of an associate in prior year. THTT) °
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's TRETASEERGEARD AR S
share of the amounts of associate that are accounted for NACREMER o
using the equity method.
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
At 31 December R+=ZBA=+-—H
Carrying amounts of interests FMEREE 3,524 3,767
Year ended 31 December: BE+ZA=+—HILLEE :
Profit from continuing operations and REFELEER 2 aF &
total comprehensive income 2HE NS BT 2,540 1,310
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/
assets recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

24, EEFIE
AEERBGEEERATERTHE(
&), BEREEHMT :

Accelerated

tax Others

depreciation Tax losses (Note) Total

MEBBNE BEEE  HEte) e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FET FTER FTER

At 1 April 2017 RZZT—tFMA—H 2,069 5,137 89 7,295

Credit/(charge) to profit or loss A (B BER 928 (813) = 115
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-N\E=ZA=+—H

1 April 2018 ERZZF—NFmMA—H 2,997 4,324 89 7,410

Charge to profit or loss HmeEHR (1,054) (351) (25) (1,430)

At 31 March 2019 R_TE—hE=A=1+—H 1,943 3,973 64 5,980

Note: Others mainly represented temporary difference arising

from unrealised profits on inventories.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

=
o
Hu

HTREFECRERBENMEELEZ
Ty E8 o

HRREAMBRRAREIME - B TEEHR
BHEERAGBCDERE - BEVBHRERE L
RIEHELEHROTOT -

2019 2018

—E-hE  —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FHET

Deferred tax assets BEEHIBEE 5,980 7,410
Deferred tax liabilities RIER BB & - -
5,980 7,410
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D) 24,

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$216,930,000 (2018: HK$296,818,000)
and the Group has not recognised deferred tax asset
in respect of tax losses of HK167,185,000 (2018:
HK$243,602,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in the unused tax losses are
losses of HK$49,745,000 (2018: HK$53,216,000) that
will expire in 2030, losses of HK$129,956,000 (2018:
HK$162,578,000) that will expire within 20 years and
losses of HK$37,229,000 (2018: HK$81,024,000) that

may be carried forward indefinitely.

IEAEBLIE (45)

RBEHR AEEZ2ADARBEERA
216,930,000/ 70 ( =& — J\ £ : 296,818,000
BIT) o B RAETERT R M@ IR - A&
I 4 Bt B 18 &5 $8167,185,0008 t( = &
— J\4F 1 243,602,000/ 7T ) R E T i 1B
BE - RMEATEERERIESR-_Z=ZF
B HA 2 54849,745,0008 T( =T — )\ & :
53,216,000 7T) * R Z+FANE| B2 &8
129,956,000/ 70( == — )\ 4F : 162,578,000
P ) K P AR PR HA 45 88 7 §51837,229,000% 7T
(ZZ—/\4F : 81,024,000/87T) °

25. INVENTORIES 25. F8
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finished goods BUAK 50,309 77,354
26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. EWARE - RS RHEMMEKR
RECEIVABLES b= |
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade debtors Z SRR 100,184 25,011
Consideration receivable from disposal HEWBRRMERRE
of a subsidiary (note 17) (BzE17) - 52,726
Prepayments AR IR 3,017 1,417
Other tax receivables E {th fE Uk £ 18 9,947 824
Deposits and other receivables L& I Bl E WK IE 10,432 10,731
123,580 90,709
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERBEHNDTE
Current assets MEEE 123,580 90,709
Non-current assets ERBEE - -
123,580 90,709
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26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26.

RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

The aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice dates at
the end of the reporting period, which approximate the
respective recognition dates, is as follows:

FEURERIE -~ & &k H it B
H(E
RFEPR(EZEMIABHER)REE
BEZ2Y 2B S EWERIE (R REEME)
ZEREAMTIT

2019 2018

—Z-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0 - 30 days 0&30H 85,822 12,023
31 - 60 days 31260H 3,068 1,307
61 — 90 days 61290H 827 2,060
Over 90 days HBiE90H 10,467 9,621
100,184 25,011

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from
0 to 365 days (2018: 0 days to 365 days) to its trade
customers. Before accepting any new customers, the
management will internally assess the credit quality of the
potential customer and define appropriate credit limits.
Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
debtors and other receivables and considers the trade
debtors and other receivables that are neither past due

nor impaired to be of a good quality.

Reconciliation of the loss allowance for trade debtors:

REELETHESERPZEHEEHNTO
HZE365H(=Z—/\% : 0B £365H) °
BEWHEP A EEEBBANITEELER
FHEEYEE  TETHENEEEE &
18 2% R E 5 FE W AR T8 K H At JE U 3R TE
WEEEE  RAERBHIRBRENESE
WBRIE R H UK B (E EE R RIT ©

BHEWERZ BREEER

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

At 1 April R A—H 10,198 9,220
(Decrease)/increase in loss allowance FEEBEEREZRL), 1Ehn

for the year (2,852) 978

At 31 March R=A=+—8H 7,346 10,198

170 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. BWRTE « R REMEWR
RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) IH (&)
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are REBESEERNDREE 5 K EME W
individually impaired trade and other debtors with BRI - 445 $2 57,346,000 (= — N
an aggregated balance of HK$7,346,000 (2018: % :10,198,0007T) - BARKAIELE
HK$10,198,000) which have either been placed under 1T/EBR G RN 2 -
liquidation or in financial difficulties.
The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS REEEAEBMBRELENFIR 2B
9 to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime FEMBHEEEEELEE - ZAEATYHM
expected loss provision for all trade debtors. To measure FESRKEERAZHNBHEERE
the expected credit losses, trade debtors have been REITEEHEEEE  ZSE5RKEERER
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics RHEGEERBRSH B HARRESE - A
and the days past due. The expected credit losses also EERETESAEEER -
incorporate forward looking information.
Less than 31-60 6190  91-180 181 days Over Over
30 days days days days -1year  1year 2-3years
Current past due past due past due past due pastdue past due past due Total
ki
k] ki bk a8 181XE faki B
EA 30RA 360K 61-90%  91-180K - BE-% WEZE hy
At 31 March 2019 RIE-NE=A=T-H
Weighted average expected loss rate  IETHRLFER 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 90% 7%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) Rl E(TEL) 86,305 518 675 2513 1699 3504 4176 8140 107,530
Loss allowance (HK$'000) ERERTAT) - - - - - - - (7,346)  (7,346)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate ~ AETREEER 0% 0% 0% 14% 38% % 79% 91% 29%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) Rl R (TEL) 15014 1441 1460 3389 5,160 604 M 748 3509
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BREE(TAT) - - - (467)  (1,954) (431) (564)  (6,781)  (10,198)
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27.

28.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

27. AT EERE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
COST B
At 1 April REA—H 49,988 45,156
Exchange realignment T R 2 (3,300) 4,832
At 31 March R=A=+—H 46,688 49,988
AMORTISATION s
At 1 April RmA—A (3,072) (782)
Amortisation during the year R (1,691) (2,084)
Exchange realignment PE 3R 3 #& 221 (206)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—8H (4,542) (3,072)
CARRYING AMOUNT BRHEE
At 31 March MR=A=+—H 42,146 46,916
PROPERTIES FOR SALE UNDER 28. BERPEEWE
DEVELOPMENT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Properties for sale under development BEPEFEME - 138,129

During the year, the Group transferred the completed
properties to properties held for sale.
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29. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 29. HEHEZWE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Properties held for sale BEXREZME 201,524 =
All properties held for sale are located in the PRC. HBIEHRE 2MED LA AR -
30. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 30. BAFEFABERZRE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Equity securities, at fair value BAES  BRAFE
Listed in Hong Kong 2 2
Listed outside Hong Kong REBZINET 185 261
187 263
31. AMOUNT DUE FROM A DIRECTOR 31. BEW—RESERE

RIBEEBCRBED ) E383(1)(d) IR E 2

Amount due from a director disclosed pursuant to section
383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as

[ —HERREMT :

follows:
Maximum
amount
outstanding Balance at Balance at
during the year 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
FRAREERR RIB-NAF=Z RZZ2-NEFZ=
Name " A Beati A=t+—H#%#% A=+t-—H#&H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Wang Xing Qiao TES 68 - 68

The advance is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on

demand.

ZEBRRRLE  BERRREBRER -
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32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32. EXNAE

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Disclosures of revenue- BN ABEERHE RoBE—hE R-T—NE R-oT—+4&
related items: =B=+—H =H=+—8H MA—H
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT FAET
Contract consideration received B WA LR(E 6,376 3,475 300
Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations PEEFRERTHOBHTELTEHRNT

unsatisfied at end of year and expected to be recognised FFERRR/KANR FHER

as revenue in:

2019 2018
Year ended 31 March BE=B=+—HLEEE —E2—-hE —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
- 2019 —ZE—-NF - 3,475
- 2020 ——E_TF 6,376 -
6,376 3,475
2019 2018
—EBE-hEF —T-N\F
Year ended 31 March BE=B=+—HLEE HK$"000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Revenue recognised in the year that FUABHEEY
was included in contract liabilities at A R RE R8O Y e
beginning of year 3,475 300
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32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D) 32. ANEE(E)
2019 2018
Significant changes in contract FEEHNEBNERES
liabilities during the year: —E-NEF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Increase due to operations during the year % E & & Mg o0 8,114 3,625
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue EEALNBBEZE Y
during the year (5,213) (450)
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to ANBBEEAEERRPEEAEFECLAR
transfer products or services to a customer for which PIEBKEB(HEKKREBLSE) WERIR
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of FEEEE

consideration is due) from the customer.

33. AMOUNTS DUE TO IMMEDIATE 33. ENEEERARNESEZ
HOLDING COMPANY AND A DIRECTOR FIE
The amounts due are interest-free, unsecured and ZERERMNREARE BEFBRIZENRE
repayable on demand. & o
34. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED 34. W@ A RIRIE
COMPANY
Maximum
amount

Name of directors outstanding

having beneficial during the Balance at Balance at
Name interest year 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
REEZRRCEE FAREEERER RIZ-AF= RIZ-NEF=
Z18 " E Be$8 A=+—B#&% A=1+—BH#&#&%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FHExT
FEEBEESEREMWERZE AR AT Wang Jing

& 62 6 62
The above advance is unsecured, interest-free and has no R esEER RSEEERTEED

fixed repayment terms. R e
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35. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 35. SRITEHRRES

RITHEB MRS EAEBAFERS UK
B EFEIEFE(ZZE—NA\F:0.01
[B)ZBITFER o

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits which carry interest at an average rate
of 0.01% (2018: 0.01%) per annum.

36. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 36. ENRIEREER

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade payables B S ENRIA 34,885 15,086
Other creditors H BRI 42,345 2,126
Accrued expenses et 23,291 18,888
100,521 36,100

The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on

REHRREZAMEI 2 E HEMNERIEA

the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period is as IR AOWIAT
follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —FT-NF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 30,615 7,174
31 - 60 days 31%60H 2,118 1,135
61 — 90 days 61290H 304 1,984
Over 90 days HHBE90H 1,848 4,793
34,885 15,086

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90

days (2018: 90 days).
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37. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED
COMPANIES

37. BB ATRER

The amount of approximately US$126,000 (equivalent
to HK$979,000) (2018: US$466,000, equivalent to
HK$3,635,000) is interest bearing at 6% per annum,
unsecured and repayable within 1 year. The amount
of approximately US$Nil (equivalent to HK$Nil) (2018:

US$126,000, equivalent to HK$979,000) is interest
bearing at 6% per annum, unsecured and repayable
after 1 year. The others are interest-free, unsecured and

repayable on demand.

#7126,0003% 7t (48 & #979,000%8 7T ) (=
T — )\ :466,0003 7T * fHE R 3,635,000
PBIT) Z RIB AR F N E6 %A B - EIE A
EMMEREE - HTZET(HERZE
L) (ZZF—)\F : 126,000k L ' HER

979,000/ 70) 2 RIEBIRFFEE6%FT B
BB MERERE - EhZHBBAES -
IR M IE BREE -

38. BORROWINGS 38. fBE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other borrowings, secured HEMBRERES 23,226 4,900
The borrowings are repayable as follows: EEEENAT
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year —F R 1,049 3,925
More than one year but not HBA—FENERRME
exceeding two years - 975
More than two years but not BERT ETNHBBRSF
exceeding five years 22,177 -
23,226 4,900
Less: Amount due within one year shown 5 @ BR—HF NEEHNRIE
under current liabilities (PR REBEET) (1,049) (3,925)
Amount due after one year AR —FREENRE 22,177 975
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38. BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Note:

(i) As at 31 March 2019, the Group's borrowings at the
amount of HK$1,049,000 (2018: HK$4,900,000) are
fixed-rate borrowings and bears interest at 5.45% per
annum (2018: 5.45%).

(i) As at 31 March 2019, the Group's borrowings at the
amount of HK$22,177,000 are fixed-rate borrowings and
bears interest at 12% per annum. The borrowings are
secured by investment properties of HK$21,126,000.

38.

]

i}

(i)

(i)

m

&(%&)

R-_ZE—NAE=A=+—0 A£BEx
& & £ %8 451,049,000 T( = T — N\
% : 4,900,000 7T) - ZEEE HIZE
EMEFHE W FREASLE(ZF —
J\:5.45E&) -

R-ZZE-NE=ZA=+—8 "&EEZ
EES%A22,177,000 T - ZEEE

BEEMNEFS  FMERIZE - Z

TR -

39. BOND PAYABLE 39. BEfNES
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FET
Corporate bond NGIEEES 1,000 -
2019 2018
Analysis as: R —ZE-hEF SN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Current liabilities mENEE - -
Non-current liabilities EmEBBE 1,000 -
1,000 -

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has
issued the corporate bond under the placing agreement
dated 13 November 2018 for bonds issuing with an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$200,000,000
("Placing Agreement”).

Under the Placing Agreement, the bond issued carry a
fixed annual interest rate of 6.5%. The bond is with a
maturity period of five years from the issue date, and the
interest will be paid semi-annually in arrears on 30 June
and 31 December in each year and the maturity date after
bond issuance.
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39.

40.

BOND PAYABLE (CONT’'D)

Pursuant to the bond instrument of bond placing
abovementioned, the Group may, at any time, before the
maturity date of the bond, redeem the bond by giving not
less than 10 business days written notice at not less than
100% of the principal amount of such bond together
with payment of interest accrued thereon up to the date
of early redemption. The directors considered that such
early redemption option of the bond was not separated
from the bond since the economic characteristics and
risks of such early redemption option were closely
related to the economic characteristics and risks of the
bond. Subject to the conditions of the bond instrument,
the bondholder shall not have the right to request the
Company to redeem the bonds prior to the maturity date
of the bonds.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

Minimum lease payments

39.

40.

BNESE)
1R L EREE TA - ARE TR ESE

AR AP RESFAEH100% CER X
BERAIMEEL AR LEAERE)ERED

B BARMTPRHETIERETER
B BEERA/ENBEES ERAIE
YRfES  ABEBREAERES 2 KRS
K B\ BB 55 2 A B 1 K R\ B R E AR
REEFTEZGE  EXFFAEABEEX
ARABNEFDHAEABELES

BARERE
Present value of
minimum lease payments

REAERRK REEEMNRRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—ZE-hE —N\E CZE-AEF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FTART FAT
Within one year —FR 120 - 112 -
In the second to fifth years, FE-_FEERF
inclusive (REEEME) 140 - 136 -
260 -
Less: Future finance chares B RREVE B A (12) -
Present value of lease obligations FfEHRIERE 248 - 248 -
Less: Amount due for settlement i : 12 AR HEE S E
within 12 months (shown (FIRFRBABET)
under current liabilities) (112) -
Amount due for settlement NREARIBEESRE
after 12 months 136 -
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40. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (CONT'D)

41.

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its furniture,
fixtures and equipment under finance leases. The average
lease term is 3 years. At 31 March 2019, the average
effective borrowing rate was 3.68%. Interest rates are
fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered
into for contingent rental payments. At the end of each
lease term, the Group has the option to purchase the
furniture, fixtures and equipment at US$1.

All finance lease payables are denominated in US dollars.

40.

EAmERE(Z)
AEBOBRANBERE S XNFABEET
RAE - REREE - FHHEEHRAIF -
RZFE-—hAE=A=+—80 FHEEREE
K B3.68% RERBMARERE  H
AEEEEHBRATFTENERR -FAEHEE
HUABETERARNER  BYERAES
SHET AL - EEEMBAERR - K
SEBRMETZERBARL H#ER
Bl

BN EREEAXITEE -

SHARE CAPITAL 41. RA
Nominal value Number
per share of shares Amount
BREE REE x|
HK$ HK$'000
BT THERT
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018, RZFE—tFMHA—H-
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 —E-N\F=ZA=+—8"
—E-N\FMA-AR
—ZT-hF=ZA=+—H 0.01 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHRRA
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFMHA—H 0.01 3,650,710,605 36,507
Issue of shares upon conversion of B R[4 % (E AT D
convertible bonds (Note) CiE) 0.01 326,086,956 3,261
At 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 RZZE—-N\FE=ZA=+—H"
and 31 March 2019 —E-N\FOA-BR
—ZT-NF=ZA=+—8 0.01 3,976,797,561 39,768

Note:

On 20 September 2017, the Bonds with nominal value of
HK$75,000,000 were converted into 326,086,956 ordinary shares
at a conversion price of HK$0.23 per conversion share. Share
capital of approximately HK$3,261,000 and share premium of
approximately HK$133,104,000 were recorded in the book during
the year.
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42. RESERVES 42. f#%E
(a) Group (a) F&EH
The amounts of the Group's reserves and AEBENRERAEZHEEZ2IRN
movements therein are presented in the GEBmkHEM2ERERREE
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ESEBE -

comprehensive income and consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

(b) Company (b) EAF
The amounts of the Company's reserves and the RZZE—NE=ZA=+—HB4FXRA
movements therein for the year ended 31 March WEERSEHESEZIWT ¢

2019 are as follows:

Capital
Share  Convertible  redemption  Contributed ~ Accumulated
premium bonds reserve reserve surplus losses Total
TR Bx
RiaE Exfs Rofk SABR ZithB Eh

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEn FEn TR TEn TEn

At 1 April 2017 RZE-+EmA-A 252,315 61,365 577,204 99,172 (698,024) 292,032
Loss and other comprehensive EEFERAMZERS
expense for the year - - - - (20,249) (20,249)

Capital contribution from non- WERTHFERERTE
controlling shareholders of a

subsidiary 133,104 (61,365) - - - 71,739
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R-ZE—-\E=A=+-Rf
“5-\fRA-1 385,419 - 577,204 99,172 (718,273) 343,522
Loss and other comprehensive FEFERAMZARY
expense for the year - - - - (17,230) (17,230)
At 31 March 2019 RE-NE=A=1-H 385,419 - 577,204 99,172 (735,503) 326,292
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42. RESERVES (CONT'D)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be applied in paying
up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company
as fully paid bonus shares or in providing
for the premiums payable on repurchase of
shares.

Contributed surplus

The Group’s contributed surplus represents
the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefore.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 3(d) to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FT-NF=A=1T—HIEFE

43.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (“SMC"), a 51.12% (2018: 51.26%) owned subsidiary
of the Company

SMC’s share option scheme was approved by SMC's
shareholders at the special meeting held on 6 September
2001 (the “SMC Scheme”). The SMC Scheme was
developed to provide a means whereby the directors and
selected employees, officers, consultants, and advisors
of SMC may be granted incentive or non-qualified stock
options to purchase common stock of SMC. The SMC
Scheme authorises an aggregate of 1,950,000 shares of
SMC’s common stock and a maximum of 450,000 shares

to any one individual in any one fiscal year.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
in any 12 month period up to the date of the grant will
be 300,000 shares.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board
of SMC, which will not be more than 10 years (or 5 years
in the case of a holder with 10% or more of the common
stock) from the date on which the option is granted. Each
option vested in one year from the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by SMC's Stock Option Committee, which consists of
two or more directors chosen by the Board of SMC. The
subscription price of the share options will be no less
than the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer date (or,
if granted to a holder of 10% or more of the common
stock, the subscription price will be no less than 110% of
the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer date).

43.

BERESTE

ARNEFEF51.12% (ZF—/\F : 51.26%)
# 25 2 KY B 2 F]The Singing Machine
Company, Inc.([SMC]) z fE Rk #E =T &l

SMCEREFEER =T —FNLAAX
BRI ZBRFRENAE EBESMCIRE it
([SMCEHEI]) e SMCEHEI IR FSMCE S
RistkiEES mBAE -  BRRFZHAL
HESEETERBREARBMCERAR 2
J7E o SMCET &S $£1,950,0008SMC
L@ MERATRSVRFEEERR
%450,000/% B 15 -

RERGASATHI2EAR - F2EATRE
PR BT RE TEITZ&SROHK
B # /300,000 °

EREITFEHRASMCES RRTE -
AR B BRETBBI10F (K MARA
L@ERI10%FUN EZ2FAEA - BIRSF) -
EEREANELBHE—TRE

BREZRBEEAMCREEZE R
T ZEBEgHSMCEERMIBEZMA K
N EESEK - BREZABESETER
SMCBEHREBLH BB WM E(SKHRLET
BEZTERIOBEIN EZEEAME * R
BEBTNMERSMCRORZLH B B HE
2110%) °
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43.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D)

43. BRESTEI(E)

The movements of the share options granted to directors

of the Company and employees of the Group pursuant to

the SMC Scheme were as follows:

REBESMCET ) MARRESERAKEE
EREBRE2EHEHFIMT

Number of share options

BREHA
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during the during the during the at end of
price  of the year year year year the year
Date of grant Riti A %E FOHRTE FAERE FREAE FAEXN FRERTE
For the year ended BE-Z-N0%
31 March 2019 ZA=t+-BLEE
31 March 2009 * ZEENE=R=+—H 0.11 120,000 - - - 120,000
31 March 2010 : “Z-ZF=A=1-H 0.03 60,000 - - - 60,000
29 October 2010 * “Z-ZF+HA-fNH 0.06 520,000 - - - 520,000
31 March 2011 * ZE——f=Zf=+—-H 0.04 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2012 * “F--FZf=t-H 0.12 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2013 # “Z-=F=zZf=+-A 0.18 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2013 # “E-Z%£tA-H 0.21 580,000 - - - 580,000
31 March 2014 # I = 0.16 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2015 # “Z-HF=f=+-A 0.17 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2015 # ZE-HFtA-A 0.17 25,000 - - - 25,000
31 March 2016 # “E-~FZA=t-H 0.24 145,000 - - - 145,000
10 August 2016 # ZE-AEFNATH 0.32 100,000 - - - 100,000
1 April 2017 # —Z—tE5MA-H 0.55 80,000 - - - 80,000
3 May 2017 # “E—+%hA=H 0.47 380,000 - - - 380,000
30 June 2017 # ZE-tFRA=TH 0.55 20,000 - - - 20,000
2,330,000 - - - 2,330,000
Exercisable at end REXRTF7E
of the year 2,330,000
Weighted average exercise MEFHTEEB(ET)
price (US$) 0.22 - - - 0.22
Holders of the share options BREEEASTNT
are analysed as follows:
Directors of SMC SMCEZ 660,000 - - - 660,000
Employees B8 1,670,000 - - - 1,670,000
2,330,000 - - - 2,330,000
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43. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D)

43. BRESTE (&)

Number of share options

BRESR
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise  at beginning  during the  during the  during the at end of the
price  of the year year year year year
Date of grant RERE TRE EMNRATE FRERL FABTR FREXN ERHKRITHE
For the year ended HEZZ-\%
31 March 2018 ZA=t-HALEE
31 March 2008 & ZETN\F=A=+-H 0.45 120,000 - - (120,000) -
31 March 2009 * “EENFZA=T-H 0.11 120,000 - - - 120,000
31 March 2010 * “E-TF=R=+—-H 0.03 60,000 - - - 60,000
29 October 2010 * ZE-ZETAZTAA 0.06 520,000 = = - 520,000
31 March 2011 * —Z—%=f=1+—H 0.04 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2012 * ZE-—f=R=+—-H 0.12 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2013 # “Z-ZFzZf=t-H 0.18 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2013 # “E-Z%+A—H 0.21 580,000 - - - 580,000
31 March 2014 # “E-MFE=A=+—H 0.16 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2015 # “Z-1FZA=t-H 0.17 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2015 # “Z-h%+tA—H 0.17 25,000 - - - 25,000
31 March 2016 # “Z-RFzA=1-H 0.24 145,000 - - - 145,000
10 August 2016 # “E-R"ENATH 0.32 100,000 - - - 100,000
1 April 2017 # “E—+%¥MmA—AH 0.55 - 80,000 - - 80,000
3 May 2017 # “E—+FRA=A 0.47 - 380,000 - - 380,000
30 June 2017 # “E—t+FRA=TH 0.55 - 20,000 - - 20,000
1,970,000 480,000 - (120,000) 2,330,000
Exercisable at end WNERA T
of the year 1,850,000
Weighted average T HTEREET)
exercise price (US$) 0.17 0.49 - 0.45 0.22
Holders of the share options BRESBEASNOT :
are analysed as follows:
Directors of SMC SMCE= 680,000 100,000 - (120,000) 660,000
Employees EE 1,290,000 380,000 - - 1,670,000
1,970,000 480,000 - (120,000) 2,330,000
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43.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D)

The above options were granted for an exercise period of
nine years from the date on which the options are vested.

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value
of the services received is measured based on the Black-
Scholes pricing model.

* The options were granted under the SMC Scheme.
# The options were approved to be granted by the board

of directors of SMC and were not granted under the SMC
Scheme.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

43.

ERESTE(E)
DA R o B IR R 22 B BR AR AL 97T
o

SRR AR S T % L B 2 A FETI 2 E
RHBRE A TEFE - FIRERBZA
FEDRANR -FRATEERAGE -

o SMCEHBITR TP th 2 BB A -

# SMCEZRftER TREZBEREAR
SMCEHBIIE FI AR ©

Bz A FERKRR

1/4/2017 3/5/2017 30/6/2017

—E-tHF 2t —F—LF

Grant date = B mMA—H FA=H R~A=*+H
Fair value at measurement date (US$) REEBHHZAFE(FET) 0.42 0.42 0.35
Share price (US$) RE(E7T) 0.57 0.57 0.52
Exercise price (US$) 1TEE(ET) 0.47 0.47 0.55
Expected volatility TERHR 1R 121.79% 119.06% 112.26%
Expected option life (years) TEET AR R HARR () 3 3 3
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 42 e g 41| & 1.08% 1.10% 1.24%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the SMC’s share price over the previous
one year. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, EREE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BELREBEEED
Contracted for but not provided in the BRELE VIS REERE
consolidated financial statements 2,636 780
2,636 780
45. LEASE COMMITMENTS 45. FAYEE
Commitments under operating leases AN AL
As lessee fERAEMEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RE|EBR  AEERBEEAADEDT T
commitments for future minimum lease payments under HEEMRN I 2 RRGEBSFAENAT
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises as follows:
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
With one year —FNR 9,650 11,686
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FoFEERF(BRIEEEMTE) 6,617 15,393
Over five years HBBAAF - 712
16,267 27,791
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by LEHONFEAEEFRERLAEREERE
the Group for its offices and warehouses. Leases are NzMEE BOHBEBER—ZERLFIE
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years (2018: (ZZ2—N\F: —&2-%F) HHERE2AE
from one to six years) and rentals are fixed over the lease FELH
terms.
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46.

47.

188

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following related party
transactions.

Details of the remuneration of key management
personnel, who are the directors, during the year are set
out in note 14. Key management personnel are deemed
to be the members of the Board of Directors of the
Company which has responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

46.

47.

SRS

REBRISLIA TR T2 5 ©

AERTREBAB(RES ) ZMEFE
BRME14 TREBABRE/ARA
EERZKE AERE  BHEREHAR
BlZEE -

RERERERME

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities RETBHEENBEEES
The following table shows the Group’s changes in TRERAFEAEERETHELANARG
liabilities arising from financing activities during the year: 2
Finance Total liabilities
Bond ease Convertible  from financing
Borrowings payable payables bonds activities
HETBHELN
&8 EfiEs EfRERE TRRES 2E4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TEn TR TR Tix
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tENA-A 99,500 - - 72,174 171,674
Change in cash flows RENEEY 3,302 - - (1,297) 2,005
Non-cash changes FReRY
- Interest expenses on convertible bonds -TARBHHERR - - - 4123 4123
- Disposal of loan under disposal of subsidiary ——HEMBATZEFNHE (105,588) - - - (105,588)
- Conversion of convertible bonds -BRIARES - - - (75,000) (75,000)
- Exchange difference -EREE 7,686 - - - 7,686
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE-\EZA=+-Bk
“3-\fEA-H 4,900 - - - 4,900
Change in cash flows Rengs 18,362 1,000 (92) - 19,270
Non-cash changes FReRY
- Finance lease payables -[EfEEREE - - 340 - 340
- Exchange difference -EREE (36) - - - (36)
At 31 March 2019 RZF-NE=R=1-H 23,226 1,000 248 - 24,474
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 48. XARR=B=1+—B 28 #

OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31 MARCH AR 3R
2019 2018
—E-AEF —ZET—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR L& 911 2,250
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Deposits and prepayments e kB HIE 3,319 3,319
Amounts due from subsidiaries N EENGTE L 405,126 405,115
Amount due from a director JEl—BEERIA 51 63
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEEY 2,515 764
411,011 409,261
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBaE
Accrued charges fEET & A 9,388 2,964
Amounts due to related companies FETBAE R AR 437 1,588
Amount due to immediate holding company & & #& % I A 51 ZIE 35,037 23,669
44,862 28,221
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEBEEFE 366,149 381,040
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERABEE 367,060 383,290
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Bond payable FERHESH 1,000 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 366,060 383,290
EQUITY R
Share capital % A% 39,768 39,768
Reserves ®HE 326,292 343,522
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 366,060 383,290
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49.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE 49, HEHREER

REPORTING PERIOD

On 10 April 2019, the Group obtained control of RZF-NFHA+TE  AEREZBREX

Benxi Zhongfu Shiye Company Limited* (X & #f & & ATERRARAATARETE]2HE

¥ A R A 7)) ("Benxi Zhongfu”) by acquiring 100% BOTRAMBERAERZOLEGE - KB/

of the issued share capital of Benxi Zhongfu for a AR #10,000,0007T - J5()3& i8 Bc 3 K %

consideration of RMB10,000,000, which was satisfied THRERHBEH ARY9,000,0007T ¢ Kii)

(i) as to RMB9,000,000 by the allotment and issue of NH & HE ARR,000,0007T « RXHE

the consideration shares; and (ii) as to RMB1,000,000 in RAERETRES BMEE  WXH

cash. Benxi Zhongfu was engaged in construction, sale B HEBHR FESRE  BERUEE

of construction materials, property rental, education 2o WESRDAREFREERBEO

consultation, car parking services, advertising, and 7 BERRHMETR -

property management in the PRC. The acquisition is part

of the on-going expansion strategy of the Group with the

aim of broadening its source of revenue.

The fair value of the consideration paid, identifiable REERZTREABMERNE - AIREAX

assets and liabilities of Benxi Zhongfu acquired as at its PEAMNAEENRBEORTEMOT

date of acquisition is as follows:

Net assets acquired: T EEFE HK$'000
FET

Inventory PN 22,449

Debtors, deposits and other receivables FEWERIE - 12 & R E KR 2,925

Bank and cash balances 1T RIRE AR 173

Creditors and accrued charges FEATBRIE R ERT & R (13,853)
11,694

Goodwill kS 1,232
12,926

Satisfied by: XD

Cash B4 1,166

280,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company ZR/A7R)2280,000,0000% i A% 11,760
12,926

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEBEA MRS m L 758

Cash consideration paid ENESNRE 1,166

Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWERe KRS EEY (173)

993

* The English name is for identification only.
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49.

50.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (CONT’D)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Benxi Zhongfu
is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
distribution of the Group’s products in the new markets
and the anticipated future operating synergies from the
combination.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
June 2019.

49.

50.

HEHRER(E)
WBARREMEL BERRNAREE

mAEH TS D HBRERFIGEN R EHRE
HIE R AR E R RIE

B HwR Z{E

HZEGARBBREN _ZE-NAFAZTN
FHEZRILERKENE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEHBEHE

Year ended 31 March
HEZE=BA=+—HLFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—FE—hfF —F-NF —F—tF —F-)/\F ZE-NF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHET FHET FHT FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  IHERK& %%
Revenue W25 381,863 425,523 462,025 518,038 559,286
Loss before taxation bR B AT 1B (245,868)  (14,495)  (36,987)  (24,113) (2,687)
Taxation % (1,263) (1,504)  (10,100) 115 (9,037)
Loss for the year from FARBFELEEKZ
continuing operations &8 (247,131) ~ (15,999)  (47,087)  (23,998)  (11,724)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRI EK
Profit/(loss) for the year from FREBEDRILEEER
discontinued operation Zm M (Eia) - - 8,081 (2,723) -
Loss for the year FEEE (247,131)  (15,999)  (39,006)  (26,721)  (11,724)
Loss attributable to: THIALTEGES -
Owners of the Company KRBER A (246,934) (22,243) (46,055) (27,251) (13,949)
Non-controlling interests FIEPERRAE = (197) 6,244 7,049 530 2,225
(247,131)  (15,999)  (39,006)  (26,721)  (11,724)
At 31 March
N=A=+—8
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—RF ZE—RF ZE2—+tF T N\F ZE-NF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FET FHET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets B 280,040 829,444 679,829 508,867 585,669
Total liabilities wafE 182,740 450,567 364,965 93,422 201,029
97,300 378,877 314,864 415,445 384,640
Attributable to owners ZIN/NETE ¥ =N = E 7]
of the Company 82,044 357,136 285,344 384,330 350,768
Non-controlling interests FEERRAE 15,256 21,741 29,520 31,115 33,872
97,300 378,877 314,864 415,445 384,640
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